

Burgundy 2017 En Primeur Offer

"They are so delicious and refreshing that I predict you will be seduced."

Allen Meadows, Burghound

"2017 Burgundy: A Modern Classic"

Neal Martin, Vinous.com

"When it's good, 2017 is very good indeed"

Tim Atkin MW, Decanter.com

"Speaking of overall wine quality, the key takeaway for readers is that when the 2017s are good, they are very good (even sometimes great) and entirely classic in style."

Allen Meadows, Burghound

"2017 White Burgundy: Quantity, Quality and Great Charm"

Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com

"A lovely vintage north to south: wines singing their heart out."

Julia Harding MW, JancisRobinson.com

"The 2017 reds are very good, often excellent, and from time to time, bloody awesome"

Neal Martin, Vinous.com

"Many 2017 reds are so fruit-driven and charming that they will drink well on release; and many producers sagely opted to bottle their wines early to capture that fruit. That notwithstanding, I suspect the best 2017s will prove sneakily long-lived, aging by virtue of their balance rather than any massive reserves of tannin or acid"

William Kelley, RobertParker.com

"Wines of Freshness, Transparency and Refinement."

Allen Meadows, Burghound

"There are some quite brilliant whites that, many growers are beginning to opine, equal or even surpass the haloed 2014s"

Neal Martin, Vinous.com

"Classically balanced and beautifully defined by site, these white Burgundies are less tangy and tensile than the 2014s, but they approach and sometimes surpass that vintage in quality. There is a succulence and plenitude to the 2017 whites that makes them very appealing indeed"

William Kelley, RobertParker.com

Contents

Burgundy 2017 Vintage Overview	3
Summary of Reds Available	
Summary of Whites Available	8
Summary of Whites Available continued	
Domaine Antoine Jobard	. 10
Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy	. 10
Domaine Bachelet-Monnot	. 10
Domaine François Buffet	. 12
Domaine Camus-Bruchon	. 13
Domaine Jean Chartron	. 14
Domaine Confuron-Gindre	. 15
Domaine de la Vougeraie	. 16
Domaine François Bertheau	
Domaine Faiveley	. 18
Domaine Felettig	. 20
Domaine Gaston Ravaut	. 22
Domaine Georges Lignier	. 23
Joseph Drouhin	. 26
Domaine Henri Gouges	
Domaine Jean Grivot	
Domaine Henri Jouan	
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini	
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet	
Domaine Jean Chauvenet	
Domaine Jean Monnier	. 37
Domaine Jérôme Chézeaux	
Domaine Joseph Colin	
Domaine Matrot	
Domaine Méo-Camuzet	
Domaine René Bouvier	
Domaine Servin	
Benjamin Leroux	
Maison Roche de Bellene	
Domaines Albert Bichot	
Burgundy 2017 Mixed Cases	
En Primeur Terms and Conditions	. 52

Unless otherwise stated, prices are quoted 'in bond' and are exclusive of duty, VAT and delivery (expected in late 2019). You will be notified by post once your wines have arrived. Bottle sizes are 75cl unless otherwise stated.

For full details please see our terms and conditions on Page 49.

Burgundy 2017 Vintage Overview

Burgundy producers are often tarnished with the same brush as is used to paint many of the big Châteaux in Bordeaux. Steep price rises over the last decade for the top tier of Bordeaux on account of increasing global demand has been met with more moderate rises in Burgundy, but in the case of the latter, that has largely been as a result of six years of hail, frost and other factors reducing harvests and in some cases it has also led some Domaines into financial difficultly.

It comes with great pleasure therefore to report that in October we visited our producers in Burgundy to be greeted with relief, smiles and full cellars from the more generous 2017 and 2018 harvests. The impact of these full cellars means there was less pressure to increase prices further to offset the low volumes, but what does it mean for the liquid in the bottle?

While 2017 was a considerably easier vintage for the vigneron than recent years (though not without the occasional scare), it did throw up a handful of dilemmas which would impact the style and quality of the resultant wines. In contrast to every other vintage since 2009, conditions favoured high yields and there was therefore the temptation to produce additional volume to counter the recent production shortfalls. In some cases, if Domaines took this too far the result was wines that appeared a little dilute, but those who did accept a slight reduction in yields through green harvesting did end up with excellent concentration.

At the winemaking stage, given the ripe fruit, modest acidity and moderate, natural tannin, to achieve wines with the structure of say 2016s, there was a temptation perhaps to extract more than usual during vinification. Such a decision however was often at odds with the vintage style, resulting in wines somewhat lacking in charm and balance. Producers who avoided these two traps produced the best wines of the vintage and in my view it was clear who these producers were. Needless to say, our decision on which Domaines to buy from and subsequently offer for sale was heavily informed by this assessment.

The best reds this year are soft, supple, charming and absolutely delicious for relatively early drinking - it's an interesting comparison with the last two vintages. 2016 offers more tannin, acidity and greater power, but does require patience. 2015 offers opulence and concentration but perhaps less of Pinot Noir's hallmark; elegance. Allen Meadows (Burghound.com) makes reference in his report to the vintage being rather 'barbell'-like, i.e. particularly good at the more modest end of the price spectrum and again at the top, but patchier in the £50-100 a bottle bracket. I'd certainly echo those sentiments, but I'd stress how perfect 2017 is at sub-£25 a bottle, providing wines which are fruit forward, easy to appreciate and which don't require long-term cellaring. Perfect for impatient Burgundy fans like me!

At their best, the whites are simply terrific. 2017 is a little like a cross of the best elements from 2014 and 2015. It has the richness of latter, but the vibrancy of the former. It is not dissimilar perhaps then to 2016, but in my view there is a slight notch up in overall quality. In fact, RobertParker.com's Burgundy review William Kelley is of the view that many of the whites even surpass the outstanding 2014s in terms of quality. The yields for Chardonnay were lower than for Pinot Noir and as a result the temptation to over crop was not an issue. The richness of the vintage therefore didn't suffer, yet the warm temperatures in summer along with timely pre-harvest rain ensured balance and freshness.

Which wines would I particularly look out for in 2017? If I was forced to pick the single most exciting estate of 2017 it would be Domaine Gilbert et Christine Felettig whose range, from their outstanding Aligoté (wonderful with seafood) right through to the top, was impeccable. I'd also propose using this vintage to stock up on the more affordable reds while you wait for your 2015s and 2016s to mature.

May I take the opportunity also to comment on how we allocate the top labels which are in most limited supply. Given the typically high demand and finite volumes in Burgundy, we want to limit any possible disappointment customers may experience. In the case of the wines marked with an (A) in the lists priority for these wines will be given to those customers who bought the same wines in the 2016 vintage <u>and</u> who are also buying from across the 2017 range. We feel it is most important to reward customers for their loyalty not only to us, but also to a particular estate. We will hold a waiting list for these wines and should additional volume become available This is not necessarily how other merchants offer these wines, but we feel it is a fair and logical method. Wines which are <u>not</u> marked with an (A) will be offered on a first come first served basis.

Stewart Pryce, 15th January 2019

Summary of Reds Available

Bourgogne & Côte Chalonnaise	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Maison Roche de Bellene	Bourgogne	-	2022	£100 per 12 IB
Domaine Confuron-Gindre	Bourgogne	15 JR	2023	£65 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon	Bourgogne	-	2022	£150 per 12 IB
Domaine Felettig	Bourgogne	86-88 AM	2023	£75 per 6 IB
Domaine Bachelet-Monnot	Bourgogne	-	2024	£155 per 12 IB
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet	Bourgogne	88 NM	2023	£155 per 12 IB
Domaine Faiveley 'La Framboisière'	Mercurey	89 AM	2025	£170 per 12 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges	Bourgogne	86-88 AM	2023	£100 per 6 IB
Other Côte de Nuits	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Grivot	Coteaux Bourguignons	87-89 NM	2023	£180 per 12 IB
Domaine René Bouvier 'En Ouzeloy'	Marsannay	87-89 AM	2022+	£240 per 12 IB
Méo-Camuzet Frère et Soeurs	Fixin	88-90 AM	2025	£174 per 6 IB
Domaine René Bouvier	Échezeaux Grand Cru	90-93 AM	2030+	£660 per 6 IB
Domaine du Clos Frantin	Échezeaux Grand Cru	18+ JR	2030+	£735 per 6 IB
Domaine Faiveley	Grands-Échezeaux Grand Cru	17 JR	2035+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Clos de Vougeot Grand Cru	90-92 NM	2030+	£875 per 6 IB
Domaine Grivot	Clos Vougeot Grand Cru	18.5 JR	2040	£960 per 6 IB
Other Côte de Beaune	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Other Côte de Beaune Domaine Camus-Bruchon	AOC Chorey-Lès-Beaune	Score -	Drink To 2023	£180 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon	Chorey-Lès-Beaune		2023	£180 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune		2023 2025	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru		2023 2025 2023	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge	- - -	2023 2025 2023 2022	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune	- - - - 87 NM	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru	- - - - 87 NM 88-91 AM	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+ 2025	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £170 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut Joseph Drouhin	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru Pommard	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+ 2025 2025+	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £170 per 6 IB £365 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut Joseph Drouhin Domaine J Monnier et Fils 'Grand Epenots-Clos de Citeaux'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru Pommard Pommard 1er Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+ 2025 2025+ 2030	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £370 per 6 IB £365 per 12 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut Joseph Drouhin Domaine J Monnier et Fils 'Grand Epenots-Clos de Citeaux' Domaine Buffet 'Clos des Chênes'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru Pommard Pommard 1er Cru Volnay 1er Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR 16 JR - 16.5++ JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+ 2025 2025+ 2030 2028	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £170 per 6 IB £365 per 12 IB £195 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut Joseph Drouhin Domaine J Monnier et Fils 'Grand Epenots-Clos de Citeaux' Domaine Buffet 'Clos des Chênes' Maison Roche de Bellene	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru Pommard Pommard 1er Cru Volnay 1er Cru Corton Grand Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR 16 JR - 16.5++ JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2025 2025+ 2025+ 2025 2025+ 2030 2028 2030	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £370 per 6 IB £365 per 12 IB £195 per 6 IB £225 per 6 IB
Domaine Camus-Bruchon Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Domaine Joseph Colin Domaine Buffet Joseph Drouhin Domaine Gaston Ravaut Joseph Drouhin Domaine J Monnier et Fils 'Grand Epenots-Clos de Citeaux' Domaine Buffet 'Clos des Chênes' Maison Roche de Bellene Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Bressandes'	Chorey-Lès-Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune Maranges 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Beaune Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1er Cru Ladoix 1er Cru Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge Volnay Volnay Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru Pommard Pommard 1er Cru Volnay 1er Cru Corton Grand Cru Corton Grand Cru	- - - 87 NM 88-91 AM 17 JR 16 JR 16 JR - 16.5++ JR	2023 2025 2023 2022 2022 2031 2025 2025 2024 2025+ 2025 2025+ 2030 2030	£180 per 12 IB £215 per 12 IB £220 per 12 IB £225 per 12 IB £115 per 6 IB £135 per 6 IB £145 per 6 IB £306 per 12 IB £325 per 12 IB £370 per 6 IB £365 per 12 IB £195 per 6 IB £225 per 6 IB £225 per 6 IB £225 per 6 IB

Summary of Reds Available (continued)

Gevrey-Chambertin	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Faiveley 'Vieilles Vignes'	Gevrey-Chambertin	89-91 AM	2030	£295 per 12 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier	Gevrey-Chambertin	16 JR	2028	£320 per 12 IB
Domaine de la Vougeraie 'La Justice'	Gevrey-Chambertin	88-90 AM	2025	£175 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin	Gevrey-Chambertin	89-91 NM	2028+	£395 per 12 IB
Domaine René Bouvier 'Les Jeunes Rois'	Gevrey-Chambertin	86-89? AM	2025+	£395 per 12 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini Vieilles Vignes	Gevrey-Chambertin	89-91 NM	2028	£225 per 6 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Songes'	Gevrey-Chambertin	91-93 NM	2035	£245 per 6 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Clos Village'	Gevrey-Chambertin	87-89 AM	2025	£245 per 6 IB
Domaine Faiveley 'La Combe Aux Moines'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	90-93 AM	2037	£250 per 6 IB
Domaine Fourrier 'Vieilles Vignes'	Gevrey-Chambertin	90-92 NM	2028	SOLD OUT
Domaine Faiveley 'Cazetiers'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	91-94 AM	2038	£315 per 6 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier 'Les Combottes'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	16 JR	2030+	£330 per 6 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Perrières'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	17.5+ JR	2030	£345 per 6 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Goulots'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	92-94 NM	2035	£345 per 6 IB
Domaine Fourrier 'Cherbaudes'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2030+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Georges Lignier	Charmes-Chambertin Grand Cru	-	2033	£620 per 6 IB
Domaine René Bouvier	Charmes-Chambertin Grand Cru	91-93 AM	2030+	£620 per 6 IB
Domaine Faiveley	Charmes-Chambertin Grand Cru	17.5 JR	2040	£625 per 6 IB
Domaine Fourrier 'Combe aux Moines'	Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru	92-94 NM	2030+	SOLD OUT
Benjamin Leroux	Mazoyères-Chambertin Grand Cru	17+ JR	2050	SOLD OUT
Domaine Faiveley	Chambertin-Clos de Bèze Grand Cru	94-96 NM	2040	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Griotte-Chambertin Grand Cru	-	2035+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Chambertin-Clos de Bèze Grand Cru	18.5 JR	2035+	SOLD OUT
Morey-St-Denis	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Georges Lignier	Morey-Saint-Denis	16.5 JR	2025+	£260 per 12 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier	Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru	16.5 JR	2028+	£175 per 6 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier 'Clos des Ormes'	Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru	17 JR	2028+	£195 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Jouan	Morey-Saint-Denis	87-89 WA	2028	£210 per 6 IB
Méo-Camuzet Frère et Soeurs	Morey-Saint-Denis	88-91 AM	2025	£240 per 6 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Millandes'	Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru	17.5 JR	2035	£345 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Jouan 'Clos Sorbé'	Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru	92-94 WA	2030	£395 per 6 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier	Clos St Denis Grand Cru	17.5 JR	2030+	£485 per 6 IB
Domaine Georges Lignier	Clos de la Roche Grand Cru	17+ JR	2033+	£595 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Jouan 'Clos St Denis'	Clos-Saint-Denis Grand Cru	92-94 WA	2035	£760 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin	Clos de la Roche Grand Cru	-	2030+	£395 per 3 IB
Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini	Clos-Saint-Denis Grand Cru	18 JR	2035+	SOLD OUT

Summary of Reds Available (continued)

Chambolle-Musigny	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Georges Lignier	Chambolle-Musigny	16 JR	2028	£370 per 12 IB
Domaine Faiveley	Chambolle-Musigny	16+ JR	2025	£395 per 12 IB
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet	Chambolle-Musigny	-	2025	£425 per 12 IB
Domaine François Bertheau	Chambolle-Musigny	17+ JR	2025	£275 per 6 IB
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet 'Charmes'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	92-94 NM	2030	£315 per 6 IB
Domaine Albert Bichot 'Les Chabiots'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	92-94 NM	2030	£345 per 6 IB
Domaine Felettig	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	88-90 AM	2030+	£360 per 6 IB
Domaine Felettig 'Les Combottes'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	17 JR	2030+	£360 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	17 JR	2030+	£375 per 6 IB
Domaine Felettig 'Les Gruenchers'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	89-91 AM	2030	£375 per 6 IB
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet 'Bourniques'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2030	SOLD OUT
Domaine René Bouvier 'Les Fuées'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	89-92 AM	2025+	£395 per 6 IB
Domaine Sylvain Cathiard et Fils 'Clos de l'Orme'	Chambolle-Musigny	90-92 WA	2028	SOLD OUT
Domaine François Bertheau 'Charmes'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	18 JR	2030	SOLD OUT
Méo-Camuzet Frère et Soeurs 'Les Feusselottes'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	89-91 AM	2028	SOLD OUT
Domaine Georges Lignier	Bonnes-Mares Grand Cru	17.5 JR	2035+	£720 per 6 IB
Domaine Hudelot-Baillet	Bonnes-Mares Grand Cru	93-95 NM	2040	SOLD OUT
Domaine François Bertheau 'Les Amoureuses'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	92-94 WA	2035	SOLD OUT
Domaine François Bertheau	Bonnes-Mares Grand Cru	92-94+ WA	2035+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin 'Amoureuses'	Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru	18.5 JR	2030+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Bonnes-Mares Grand Cru	18.5+ JR	2035+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Musigny Grand Cru	19+ JR	2035+	SOLD OUT
Vosne-Romanée	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Confuron-Gindre	Vosne-Romanée	17 JR	2025	£195 per 6 IB
Domaine Jérôme Chezeaux 'Les Chaumes'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	-	2030+	£210 per 6 IB
Domaine Felettig	Vosne-Romanée	88-90 NM	2028	£220 per 6 IB
Domaine Jérôme Chezeaux 'Les Suchots'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	-	2030+	£285 per 6 IB
Benjamin Leroux	Vosne-Romanée	16.5 JR	2033	£288 per 6 IB
Domaine Confuron-Gindre 'Chaumes'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	17 JR	2030+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Confuron-Gindre 'Les Brûlées'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	17+ JR	2030+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Felettig	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	89-91 AM	2025+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Méo-Camuzet	Vosne-Romanée	89-91 AM	2028	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2028+	£395 per 6 IB
Domaine du Clos Frantin 'Les Malconsorts'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	91-93 AM	2028	£595 per 6 IB
Domaine Sylvain Cathiard et Fils	Vosne-Romanée	89-91 AM	2030	SOLD OUT
Domaine Grivot 'Suchots'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	93-95 NM	2040	SOLD OUT
Domaine Sylvain Cathiard et Fils 'Aux Malconsorts'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	93-95 WA	2035+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Brûlées'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	93-95 NM	2035+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Cros Parantoux'	Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru	93-95 AM	2040	SOLD OUT

Summary of Reds Available (continued)

Nuits-St-Georges	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Jean Chauvenet	Nuits-Saint-Georges	89-91 AM	2025	£295 per 12 IB
Domaine Felettig	Nuits-Saint-Georges	90-92 NM	2030	£190 per 6 IB
Domaine Confuron-Gindre	Nuits-Saint-Georges	16.5 JR	2025	£195 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges	Nuits-Saint-Georges	88-90 AM	2025+	£195 per 6 IB
Domaine Jérôme Chezeaux 'Aux Boudots'	Nuits-St-Georges 1er Cru	-	2030+	£195 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges 'Clos des Porrets St Georges'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	90-92 NM	2030+	£250 per 6 IB
Domaine Jean Chauvenet 'Les Damodes'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	90-92 AM	2030	£260 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges 'Pruliers'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	90-93 AM	2030+	SOLD OUT
Joseph Drouhin 'Les-Saint-Georges'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	-	2030+	£325 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges 'Les Vaucrains'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2035+	£425 per 6 IB
Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Boudots'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	90-93 AM	2030+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Murgers'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	90-92 AM	2030+	SOLD OUT
Domaine Sylvain Cathiard et Fils 'Aux Murgers'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	92-94 NM	2030	SOLD OUT

Drink by dates at this stage are very difficult to predict and are for a guide only. In many cases we've erred on the side of pessimism and once bottled we would expect these dates to be extended in most cases.

Jancis Robinson (or team) (JR) <u>www.jancisrobinson.com</u>) | Neal Martin (NM) <u>www.vinous.com</u> | Steven Tanzer (ST) <u>www.vinous.com</u> | Tim Atkin (TA) <u>www.timatkin.com</u> | Decanter Magazine (Dec) <u>www.decanter.com</u> | Allen Meadows (AM) <u>www.burghound.com</u>

Summary of Whites Available

Bourgogne & Non-Côte d'Or	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Felettig	Bourgogne Aligoté	-	2022	£55 per 6 IB
Domaine Jean Chartron 'Montmorin'	Rully	90 NM	2028	£120 per 12 IB
Domaine Matrot	Bourgogne	-	2022	£125 per 12 IB
Domaine Servin 'Montée de Tonnere'	Chablis 1er Cru	91-94 AM	2025	£85 per 6 IB
Domaine Servin 'Vaucoupin'	Chablis 1er Cru	90-93 AM	2025	£85 per 6 IB
Domaine Servin 'Mont de Milieu'	Chablis 1er Cru	91-94 AM	2025	£85 per 6 IB
Domaine Henri Gouges 'Pinot Blanc'	Bourgogne	84 NM	2022	£100 per 6 IB
Domaine Joseph Colin	Bourgogne	15.5 JR	2021	£100 per 6 IB
Domaine Antoine Jobard	Bourgogne	87-89 WA	2023	SOLD OUT
Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Clos St Philibert'	Hautes-Côtes de Nuits	16.5 JR	2025	£144 per 6 IB
Other Côte d'Or	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Felettig	Hautes-Côtes de Beaune	-	2023	£85 per 6 IB
Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils 'Montrevenot'	Beaune 1er Cru	-	2023	£90 per 6 IB
Benjamin Leroux 'Sous le Chateau'	St-Romain	16.5 JR	2023	£105 per 6 IB
Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches'	Côte de Beaune	87 NM	2022	£105 per 6 IB
Domaine Albert Bichot	Santenay	-	2022	£120 per 6 IB
Domaine Jean Chartron 'Murgers'	St-Aubin 1er Cru	90-92 NM	2032	SOLD OUT
Domaine Joseph Colin 'Compendium'	St-Aubin	15.5 JR	2024	£130 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin	Côte de Beaune	-	2023	£295 per 12 IB
Domaine Joseph Colin 'En Remilly'	St-Aubin 1er Cru	16.5 JR	2025+	£185 per 6 IB
Domaine Joseph Colin 'La Chatenière'	St-Aubin 1er Cru	16+ JR	2025+	£185 per 6 IB
Domaine Felettig 'Les Terres Blanches'	Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru	-	2030	£275 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin 'Clos des Mouches'	Beaune 1er Cru	18.5 JR	2028+	£480 per 6 IB
Puligny-Montrachet & Grands Crus	AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils	Puligny-Montrachet	-	2023	£285 per 12 IB
Domaine Bachelet-Monnot	Puligny-Montrachet	88-91 ST	2023	£350 per 12 IB
Domaine Jean Chartron	Puligny-Montrachet	88-90 NM	2032	SOLD OUT
Maison Roche de Bellene	Puligny-Montrachet	-	2023	£420 per 12 IB
Joseph Drouhin	Puligny-Montrachet	91 NM	2025	£430 per 12 IB
Domaine Jean Chartron 'Folatières'	Puligny-Montrachet 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2038	SOLD OUT
Domaine Faiveley 'Les Referts'	Puligny-Montrachet 1er Cru	17 JR	2025+	£260 per 6 IB
Maison Roche de Bellene 'Champ Gain'	Puligny-Montrachet 1er Cru	17 JR	2025+	£295 per 6 IB
Joseph Drouhin 'Clos de la Garenne'	Puligny-Montrachet 1er Cru	91 NM	2025+	£365 per 6 IB
Domaine Jean Chartron	Bâtard-Montrachet	92-94 NM	2038	SOLD OUT
Domaine Joseph Colin	Bâtard-Montrachet Grand Cru	-	2030++	SOLD OUT
Domaine Joseph Colin	Chevalier-Montrachet Grand Cru	-	2030++	SOLD OUT

Summary of Whites Available continued

AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Meursault	-	2023	£270 per 12 IB
Meursault	86-88 NM	2025	£350 per 12 IB
Meursault	88-90 ST	2023	£370 per 12 IB
Meursault 1er Cru	-	2025	£200 per 6 IB
Meursault	89-91 WA	2025+	£222 per 6 IB
Meursault	-	2025	£225 per 6 IB
Meursault 1er Cru	90-92 NM	2028	£260 per 6 IB
Meursault 1er Cru	91-93 NM	2030+	£325 per 6 IB
AOC	Score	Drink To	Case Price
Chassagne-Montrachet		2023	0050 4015
Chassagne-Montrachet	•	2023	£350 per 12 IB
Chassagne-Montrachet	90-92 NM	2023	SOLD OUT
· ·	- 90-92 NM 88-91 ST		•
Chassagne-Montrachet		2032	SOLD OUT
Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet	88-91 ST	2032 2023	SOLD OUT
Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet	88-91 ST 16 JR	2032 2023 2024	SOLD OUT SOLD OUT £195 per 6 IB
Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet	88-91 ST 16 JR 90 NM	2032 2023 2024 2025	SOLD OUT SOLD OUT £195 per 6 IB £395 per 12 IB
Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet Chassagne-Montrachet 1er Cru	88-91 ST 16 JR 90 NM 17 JR	2032 2023 2024 2025 2025+	SOLD OUT SOLD OUT £195 per 6 IB £395 per 12 IB £270 per 6 IB
	Meursault Meursault Meursault Meursault 1er Cru Meursault Meursault Meursault Meursault 1er Cru Meursault 1er Cru Meursault 1er Cru	Meursault - Meursault 86-88 NM Meursault 88-90 ST Meursault 1er Cru - Meursault 89-91 WA Meursault - Meursault 1er Cru 90-92 NM Meursault 1er Cru 91-93 NM AOC Score	Meursault - 2023 Meursault 86-88 NM 2025 Meursault 88-90 ST 2023 Meursault 1er Cru - 2025 Meursault 89-91 WA 2025+ Meursault - 2025 Meursault 1er Cru 90-92 NM 2028 Meursault 1er Cru 91-93 NM 2030+ AOC Score Drink To

Please note wines marked with an (A) are strictly on allocation as outlined on page 3, a waiting list will be held should volumes not be taken up from those customers who bought the wine last year and are buying across the range.

Drink by dates at this stage are very difficult to predict and are for a guide only. In many cases we've erred on the side of pessimism and once bottled we would expect these dates to be extended in most cases.

Jancis Robinson (or team) (JR) www.jancisrobinson.com) | Neal Martin (NM) www.vinous.com | Steven Tanzer (ST) www.vinous.com | Allen Meadows (AM) www.vinous.com | Decanter Magazine (Dec) www.vinous.com | Allen Meadows (AM) www.vinous.com | Decanter Magazine (Dec) www.vinous.com | Allen Meadows (AM) www.vinous.com | Decanter Magazine (Dec) www.vinous.com | Allen Meadows (AM) www.vinous

Domaine Antoine Jobard

"Incisive but concentrated, Antoine Jobard's style was a perfect match for the 2017 vintage, and he has produced a predictably lovely range of wines that will be well worth readers' avid attention."

William Kelley, RobertParker.com

Antoine Jobard took over from his father François on his retirement twelve years ago, becoming the fifth generation to take charge of the Domaine. The 2011 vintage was the first time we had tasted chez Jobard and the wines hugely impressed. Since then the bar has been raised higher still each year. Here is a perfect example of the trend seen in Meursault over the last few years where the archetypal sweet-fruited, buttery, highly-oaked wines that dominate popular perception of the appellation have started to give way to wines that that are more lightly oaked and earlier picked, keeping a tension and focus to the wine and allowing the terroir to better express itself. Jobard now produces "some of the most long lived Meursaults" (Andrew Jefford, The New France). The flavour profile too is shifting, from tropical fruits to citrus.



Domaine Antoine Jobard Meursault



£222 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Robert Parker

"A cuvée derived from Sous la Velle, Les Chaumes de Narvaux and Corbins, the 2017 Meursault Village exhibits aromas of smoky pear, toasted nuts and dried white flowers, followed by a medium to full-bodied, fleshy but tensile palate, with lovely texture and cut, concluding with a penetrating finish." 89-91 Pts, William Kelley, RobertParker.com, January 2019

Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy

Having forged a career in the Army, Fabrice Bouard moved the family's Domaine away from bottling for négociants and now concentrates on their own five hectares of vines including seven different Premiers Crus. While we're reasonably well set for the whites, although volumes here are tiny at the best of times, the red Chassagne-Montrachet really stood out as part of a larger tasting with other producers and always offers excellent value versus the appellation's more fashionable whites.



Domaine Bouard-Bonnefoy Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge



£225 per 12 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

"One of the great shames in Burgundy I think, is the commercial pressure to replant Pinot Noir in Chassagne to Chardonnay. This is simply because the market can command a higher price for white Chassagne than it can for red despite the terroir suiting Pinot in many cases. This is a great fun wine, modest in price for the appellation and represents a fruit forward, early drinking Pinot Noir with lovely svelte tannins, perfumed dark fruit characters which is a lovely match with lamb or game."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot

"What can I say? What more needs to be said? These guys are just making stupendous white Burgundy wines that rank alongside the best you can find... If you have not discovered the Bachelet brothers yet, it's time to do so."

Jancis Robinson

Based in picturesque Dezize-Lès-Maranges, but with several parcels of Meursault, Chassagne- and Puligny-Montrachet village and Premier Cru vineyards, Domaine Bachelet-Monnot are one of the most exciting additions to our range over the last decade and have already got quite a following. The estate is run by brothers Marc and Alexandre and their wines, both red and white, are delicious, each seeming to get the balance between drinkability and structure just right.

In 2017 the proportions of new oak have been further dialled back, allowing the fruit to express itself more clearly and for the terroir difference between each cuvée to be further accentuated.



Domaine Bachelet-Monnot Bourgogne



£155 per 12 IB Drink to 2024 Arriving Late 2019

"In the context of the vintage as a whole, this entry level Bourgogne rouge is a little more 2016-like than I'd have expected. Less fragrant than many this year, with firmer tannins and structure. The fruit is fully ripe, but more elegant and refined. The tannins are very fine, but surprisingly concentrated and this suggests the wine would benefit from a year or two in bottle. Half the fruit for this cuvée is from Maranges, the other half from underneath the village of Puligny." Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot Puligny-Montrachet



£345 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

88-91 Stephen Tanzer

"Light, bright yellow. Aromas of white peach, noble herbs and toasty oak are lifted by a stony quality (none of these '17s show any exotic character). Fine-grained, concentrated wine with sweet flavors of stone fruits and white flowers nicely framed by harmonious acidity. This wine really benefited from the dry growing season, noted Alexandre Bachelet, who added that its pH is 3.1, about the same as that of the village Chassagne. Offers good density and grip for village wine." 88-91 Pts Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com September 2018

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot Chassagne-Montrachet



£350 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

88-91 Stephen Tanzer

"(made from six parcels located "next to" the premier and grand crus of Chassagne-Montrachet, according to Alexandre Bachelet, who added that about half of these vines are less than 30 years old): Distinctly floral, pure scents of pear, white peach and menthol; showing well today thanks to the earlier malolactic fermentation, which finished in February. Juicy and light on its feet, with its flavors of white peach, menthol and dusty stone displaying modest flesh but lovely precision. Finishes with very good lift. The Bachelets will rack this wine just before the 2018 harvest, but it will remain in stainless steel until bottling next March or April."

88-91 Pts Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com, September 2018

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot 'Clos du Cromin' Meursault



£370 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

88-90 Stephen Tanzer

"(just finished its malolactic fermentation but not yet sulfited): Ripe but subdued aromas of yellow fruits and spices. Round and savory, with the flavors of fresh apricot and mirabelle conveying good texture but only moderate depth. Turned fatter and spicier with air but could use more cut and lift. This may be in a slightly oxidative phase today. While half of these vines were planted in 1998, the other half date back to 1945, which Marc Bachelet says makes them among the oldest vines in Meursault."

88-90 Pts Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com, September 2018

Domaine François Buffet

Based in a cracking spot in the heart of Volnay behind the church, Marc-Olivier Buffet has some low-roofed, charming cellars comprising not only the 2017s in their barrels, but a selection of bottled wines dating back to the Second World War, alas not available for sale! In his vineyards he is a keen exponent of repiquage, replacing individual wines once they are dead or have stopped producing rather than ripping up large plots at one time, thus maximising the age of his vines. He has seven hectares spanning Volnay, Pommard and Savigny-Lès-Beaune. Buffet's wines remain great value, despite the quality on show here in 2017 – without doubt our best tasting at this address so far.



Domaine Buffet Volnay



£306 per 12 IB Drink to 2024 Arriving Late 2019

16 Jancis Robinson

"Pale garnet. Very direct, early-appeal fruit on the nose. Almost rude sweetness and ripeness. Easy to like but not one of the purest expressions of Volnay. Slightly short of juice on the end."

16 Pts Jancis Robinson, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Buffet 'Clos des Chênes' Volnay



£225 per 6 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

"Without question the best tasting I've had at this Domaine, the wines were pure and polished, but very easy to appreciate, a far cry from Volnay and Pommard in the 90s and 00s which were often tough and tannic. This is my favourite vineyard site in Volnay and generally produces the rounded, most fruit rich style of Volnay. It's wonderfully juicy and vibrant with great texture and concentration. I love it!"

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Camus-Bruchon

Although there is archival evidence dating the domaine back to 1704, for almost 250 years the succession passed through a sole female heir. Until the birth of Lucien Camus in 1949 therefore, the Domaine name changed with each successive generation. Luc and his wife Bernadette (née Bruchon) are blessed with both a son, Guillaume, who since 2001 has been working full-time at the Domaine and a daughter, Alexandra, who is the oenologist at the well-known Beaune *négociant* Albert Bichot.

Based on the edge of Savigny and overlooking the village's finest plots, this Domaine has 9.5ha of vineyard across regional, village and Premier Cru sites in Savigny, Pommard and Beaune As we've come to expect from this estate's wines, the 2017s are wonderfully expressive and are perfect wines for those who perhaps want a little more vibrancy and fruit in their Burgundy. That said, they age remarkably well too.



Domaine Camus-Bruchon 2017 Bourgogne



£150 per 12 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

"Compared to their Chorey below, this is the more elegant wine in their range, a style which suits the Burgundy purists perhaps? Lovely and fresh, well integrated acidity and soft supple tannins, but not super-concentrated. I always buy a bit of this each year and this is certainly something you can tuck into right away."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Camus-Bruchon 2017 Chorey-Lès-Beaune



£180 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"In my view, the pick of their range this year, more exuberant than the Bourgogne, really vibrant, full of dark spice, really concentrated without being over-extracted. They got is so right in 2017, getting as much out of the fruit as possible without going a millimetre too far. There's so much going on in the bottle, one of my picks of the vintage."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Camus-Bruchon 2017 'Cuvée Reine Joly' Savigny-Lès-Beaune



£215 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

"This completes the trio of wines we're offering from this charming Domaine perfectly, whereas I feel the Bourgogne and Chorey are quite contrasting in style in the context of the Domaine's philosophy, this add another dimension still. A more serious wine with a tannic structure to age. A little less expressive at this stage versus the Chorey, but with a refinement and polish that justifies the price tag. A classic Savigny which I would suggest would benefit from 4-5 years in bottle." Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Jean Chartron

"His wines have tended to be a little underrated out there in the market place." "A producer that is improving with every passing vintage."

Neal Martin

Massive quality improvements at any particular estate tend to take a few years for consumers to notice. Subsequently prices tend to rise accordingly. Chartron are in that sweet spot for consumers of producing excellent wines, but the market not yet fully recognising this, although as you can see from the quote above, some of the critics have. These wines will appeal greatly to those drinkers who appreciate a more elegant, food friendly style of white Burgundy. That said, the 'Benoîtes' traditionally suits those who prefer a weightier style.

Jean-Michel was wearing a smile as wide as a Cheshire cat's when we arrived at the Domaine to taste. That might have something to do with the quality of the 2017s. In fact, this might well be the best vintage we have ever tasted from this Domaine, edging ahead of the outstanding 2014s.



Domaine Jean Chartron 'Montmorin' Rully



£120 per 12 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

90 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Rully Montmorin comes from 3.4-hectares of vine, three-quarters aged in pièces of which 10% are new. It has an attractive bouquet with orange blossom, touches of vanilla pod and white chocolate, very well defined and focused. The palate is well balanced with a taut, quite tensile entry. This is quite linear at first, but precise and detailed with a touch of spice on the finish. Very fine, but it needs 18 to 24 months in bottle."

90 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Confuron-Gindre

A quick trip up Rue de la Tâche in Vosne took us to this Domaine – I still cannot believe this estate remains under the radar of many of major critics (although Clive Coates did suggest that "someone in Britain should snap him up" back in 2008). That said, the Domaine has a focus on supplying high end restaurants within France, rather than supplying the export market.

These wines are perhaps on the richer side of the Vosne spectrum, but are tremendously well polished and balanced. In an otherwise quite weathly village of Vosne-Romanée, there's something refreshingly unpretentious about this Domaine.



Domaine Confuron-Gindre Bourgogne



£65 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"A wine which we were unable to taste this year given the stage at which it was at in the winery, but we bought nonethe-less given the quality of previous vintages. On the richer end of the spectrum with fruit characteristics that you'd expect from a Vosne producer. So, expect this to be more flamboyant, floral and denser than many a Bourgogne" Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Confuron-Gindre Nuits-St-Georges



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Heavily spiced nose from oak isn't quite integrated, although the palate has much better harmony. Dry finish with dark fruit and plenty of ripeness."

16.5 Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Confuron-Gindre Vosne-Romanée



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

"Characterful cherry and blackberry fruit with a zippy acidic freshness on the finish and lovely juniper notes. Precise, and expressive but perhaps not as floral as you'd like Vosne-Romanée to be in an exam."

17 Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine de la Vougeraie

"Domaine de la Vougeraie has almost discretely become a major player in top quality, occasionally profound Burgundy wine. With winemaker Pierre Vincent, there was a significant turnaround in style and quality -- the wines discovering terroir expression, nuance and elegance, poise and complexity. I've lost count the number of times their wines have triumphed in blind tastings and yet still, I don't think this domaine receives the credit that is due."

Neal Martin

By common consent of most Burgundy followers, quality at Domaine de la Vougeraie was lifted to a significant degree during the tenure of head winemaker Pierre Vincent. 2017 though was the first vintage since his departure and the big question was whether the winemaking team, now led by the delightfully enthusiastic Sylvie Poillot, had learnt sufficiently from the master to simply pick up the baton and run. Based on the evidence of the 2017s here, the answer is a most definite yes! The sheer attention to detail required in the vineyard to commit to biodynamic wine production means every 'i' is dotted and every 't' crossed, no short cut is taken and this level of precision makes for impeccable quality fruit.

Just as it was under Vincent, the reds in particular in 2017 show a wonderful balance between structure and primary fruit, helped by the partial inclusion of whole bunches in the vat, varying between 30 and 50% depending on the wine. What's more, they are vibrant, intense and packed with the required stuffing to age.



Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Beaune



£115 per 6 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

87 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Côte de Beaune Les Pierres Blanches had already been bottled just before harvest. The bouquet is slightly chalky and a little tight at the moment, displaying touches of black currant and raspberry. The palate has more red fruit and more Pinoté than the Bourgogne Rouge. Quite sweet with a light candied orange peel note toward the charming finish."

87 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Marconnets' Savigny-Lès-Beaune 1^{er} Cru



£135 per 6 IB Drink to 2031 Arriving Late 2019

86-88 Neal Martin

88-91 Burghound

"The 2017 Savigny-lès-Beaune Les Marconnets 1er Cru comes from three parcels and includes 30% whole bunch fruit this year. It has a slightly more rustic bouquet than its peers from Vougeraie, more tertiary and stemmy in style. The palate is medium-bodied with good grip, slightly lactic toward the second half, but shows good length. I would just appreciate more terroir expression on the finish."

86-88 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine de la Vougeraie 'La Justice' Gevrey-Chambertin



£175 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

85-87 Neal Martin

88-90 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin La Justice comes from vines around 60 years old, and this is one of the few cuvées to be completely de-stemmed. It has a terse, rocky bouquet, more stony than fruit-driven. The palate is medium-bodied with light tannins and a little raw and mean at the moment compared to the Village Crus from Vougeraie, needing more substance to show through on the finish. Hopefully this will improve in bottle."

85-87 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches' Côte de Beaune



£105 per 6 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

87 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Côte de Beaune Les Pierres Blanches Blanc, which finishes its maturation in stainless steel after almost a year in barrel, has an attractive bouquet with scents of white peach, mango and a slight pine cone aroma. The palate is well balanced but simple, lightly honeyed in texture, featuring subtle tropical fruit of peach and pineapple chunks, the latter defining the finish. Drink this over the next two or three years."

87 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine François Bertheau

"A lovely portfolio of supple, fragrant wines that represent the essence of Chambolle in their elegance and purity."

William Kelley, RobertParker.com

To call François Bertheau eccentric would be an understatement; he is with little doubt the most charismatic winemaker we met all week. Based in the centre of Chambolle-Musigny, François took over from his father Pierre in 2003 and has since had no shortage of suitors for his vineyard holdings which are all based in Chambolle and which include two of the most desirable sites in Burgundy. Stylistically these wines are fascinating, he practices 'lutte raisonnée' and allows the fruit to determine the style of the wine and gives it every chance by limiting manipulation in the vineyard and winery, minimal new oak and minimal racking gives a wonderfully delicate, perfumed style and has earned this Domaine cult status with sommeliers around the world.

François likes to do things his way and when we asked when he harvested in 2017, he described himself in Tour de France not as the 'Lanterne Rouge', the last rider in the race, but as the 'Voiture Balai', the broom wagon that follows an hour or so after the last rider has passed!



Domaine François Bertheau Chambolle-Musigny



£275 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

17+ Jancis Robinson

87-89 Burghound

87-89 Robert Parker

"Fragrant and tangy with delicious clarity and zip. Quite lean, but with good purity as well. The structure is ready to drink now, while the red fruit should open up well."

17+ Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley

Over the course of the last five years, the low yields in Burgundy have caused a number of issues for the consumer, none more so than the prices being paid for fruit going through the roof. It is for this reason that we wanted to explore Domaines who own their own vineyards, where there is less of an impact from the open market for fruit making its way through to the price ultimately paid for the finished bottle. Along with sheer quality, this was one of the main reasons for bringing this Domaine back into our range three years ago.

While Faiveley's vineyard holdings are extensive by Burgundian standards, quality reflects the fact that this is a family Domaine, making wine from parcels under its own ownership. In fact, they care for their wines so much, this is the only cellar I have ever seen where the most precious wine is kept in barrel closed with a lockable bung!

The number of decades-olds examples of Faiveley's wines that are pulled out for retrospective tastings underlines the fact that these wines are likely to appeal greatly to the traditionalist who is looking for more structure and for wines to cellar rather than for instant gratification. Some of the most impressive Burgundies we have tasted are from this Domaine, but all of them have been at the peak of maturity, so patience is certainly rewarded here. Though in saying that, the charming Mercurey 'La Framboisière is once again a notable exception which can be enjoyed young.



Domaine Faiveley 'La Framboisière' Mercurey



£170 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

87 Neal Martin 89 Burghound 16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Mercurey La Framboisière, a 10-hectare monopole of the domaine, was bottled just before harvest and contains 20% whole bunches. Maybe predictably, it has an attractive, light raspberry jam bouquet with touches of red cherry. The fresh, approachable palate is medium-bodied with crunchy red berry fruit, a fine line of acidity and a dab of spice on the aftertaste."

87 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley 'Vieilles Vignes' Gevrey-Chambertin



£295 per 12 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

88-91 Neal Martin

88-91 Burghound

16 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Vieilles Vignes comes from about nine hectares around the appellation, although usually around one-third is sold off. It has an attractive bouquet of raspberry, cranberry and wet limestone aromas. The palate is a little chewy on the entry, but there is good acidity and plenty of crunchy red berry fruit. The correct, short but focused finish is quite Morey-like in style. Drink over the next eight to 10 years."

88-91 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley Chambolle-Musigny



£395 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

16+ Jancis Robinson

"Cask sample. Light cherry red. Scented fruit with a light floral note. Tight and quite strict on the palate, fresh and a little clenched and needs time to relax even though it's expressive on the nose. Just a little lean on the finish but I think what seems restricted now will open to delicacy. Persistent."

16+ Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley
'La Combe Aux Moines'
Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru



£250 per 6 IB Drink to 2037 Arriving Late 2019

88-90 Neal Martin

90-93 Burghound

"A restrained and markedly cool nose reflects notes of violet, plum, earth and a more discreet touch of wood. The supple and relatively forward medium weight flavors possess an appealing sense of energy, all wrapped in a sleek and stony finish that is less austere than usual. As is the case with several wines in the range, this is not especially dense but it is both very complex and well-balanced." 90-93 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley 'Cazetiers' Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru



£315 per 6 IB Drink to 2038 Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

91-94 Burghound

16 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Les Cazetiers comes from Faiveley's substantial four-hectare parcel. I find this has more gumption and detail than the Lavaux Saint-Jacques at the moment. The nose features layers of blackberry, raspberry and crushed stone aromas, and the sweet, candied palate is medium-bodied with fine-grained tannin. Blood orange and quince infuse the red fruit toward the finish. Excellent." 91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Faiveley
'Les Referts'
Puligny-Montrachet 1er Cru



£260 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Stephen Tanzer

17 Jancis Robinson

"Cask sample. Creamy citrus with a touch of white mushroom, mealy and rich. Spicy lemon on the palate, tight but full of fruit at the core. Deep and impressive. Needs a little more time to gain finesse."

17 Pts Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig

"I would again call to your attention that the quality at this domaine has skyrocketed over the past few vintages."

Allen Meadows, Burghound

Both Allen Meadows and Neal Martin have earmarked siblings Gilbert and Christine Felletig's Chambolle-Musigny Domaine as a rising star and our visits here over the last three years have really reinforced this view. This year we tasted a delicious range of well-made reds where Gilbert's judgment of the optimum levels of new oak use and whole bunch fermentation seemed absolutely spot on for every wine. The wines here showed a beautiful purity of fruit as well as supple tannins and were simply delightful to taste. We are delighted to offer the wines from this rapidly rising star for just the third vintage.



Domaine Felettig Bourgogne



£75 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

84-86 Neal Martin

86-88 Burghound

"The 2017 Bourgogne Rouge is matured in 20% new oak, the malo having just finished on this cuvée when I visited the domaine. It has a pure, generous bouquet of black cherries and cassis fruit. The palate is medium-bodied, quite dense and intense for a Bourgogne Rouge, with plenty of blue fruit toward the finish. Quite a boisterous wine!" 84-86 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig Nuits-St-Georges



£190 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Nuits Saint-Georges Village comes two-thirds from Les Chaliots and one-third from Les Lavièves. It has a focused, detailed bouquet of wild strawberry and light cassis fruit, delineated and with commendable intensity. The palate is medium-bodied and silky-smooth in texture, the 50% new oak beautifully integrated, and the finish is sensual. This might be even better than the Vosne-Romanée Village." 90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig Vosne-Romanée



£220 per 6 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

88-90 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Vosne-Romanée Village, matured in 60% new oak, has a very pure bouquet of dark cherries and boysenberry fruit, beautifully defined and seamlessly integrated with the oak. The palate is medium-bodied with sappy red berry fruit and quite dense for a Village Cru. The engaging, minerally finish offers a surfeit of freshness and tension. This comes highly recommended, although it will require three or four years to assimilate the new oak.

88-90 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig 'Les Combottes' Chambolle-Musigny 1^{er} Cru



£360 per 6 IB Drink to 2035 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

90-92 Burghound

17 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Chambolle-Musigny Les Combottes 1er Cru comes from vines over 60 years old and sees around 60% new oak. The bouquet is more introspective and the fruit blacker than the Les Fuées, featuring blackberry and bilberry tinged with earthy, sous-bois aromas. The dense, sinewy palate is medium-bodied with supple tannin and fine acidity, though I miss the finesse shown by the Les Fuées on the finish. Give this several years in bottle." 90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig
'Les Gruenchers'
Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru



£375 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Burghound

"This is also moderately toasty with its fresh nose of more deeply pitched aromas of plum, dark cherry, spice and a wisp of violet. There is both better volume and mid-palate density to the medium-bodied flavors that possess a velvety mouthfeel, all wrapped in a generous if not particularly complex finale though I suspect that more depth will develop with a few years of bottle age."

89-91 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Felettig Bourgogne Aligoté



£55 per 6 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

"I wonder if there's a greater show of confidence in a wine than highlighting this is probably the wine in our range that I've bought in greater volume for my own 'cellar' last year than any other. In fact, I've just taken the last 6 bottles of the 2016 we had in stock the day I write this up. Neal Martin in his article on 2017 flags Aligoté as a style to target and this is exactly why. Though not as weighty as Chardonnay it still has a rich, Burgundian texture but with more stone fruit and citrus notes. The acidity is higher than Chardonnay making it a perfect aperitif or a great match with shellfish, Indian food or poultry."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Felettig Hautes-Côtes de Beaune



£85 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Felettig
'Les Terres Blanches'
Nuits-St-Georges 1er Cru



£275 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Gaston Ravaut

Last year was the first visit we had made to this estate based in Ladoix-Serrigny, just south of Nuits-Saint-Georges. Gaston's son Pierre now runs the estate, focussing on the viticulture whilst his colleague Vincent takes care of vinification. A true family Domaine which typifies the traditional Burgundy ethos. They primarily sell direct to consumers from the cellar, but we're delighted to be one of the first to offer them in the UK.

2017 was a very strong follow up vintage to the 2016s that impressed us so much last year. True to their geography straddling the border between the Côte de Beaune and the Côte de Nuits, the wines combine elegance with power, silky tannins with mid-palate weight and red fruit with black.



Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot' Ladoix 1er Cru



£135 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

"Sweet red fruit with lots of ripeness and then a leathery, tarry note to finish – shows a very different side of the appellation to their La Corvée – buy both and taste the difference!"

17 Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Gaston Ravaut Aloxe-Corton 1er Cru



£170 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

16++ Jancis Robinson

"Strong black fruit with fine but grippy tannins, punchy acid and a slightly bitter element to the cherry fruit. Doesn't shine so brightly as their Ladoix cuvées, for me."

16++ Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Bressandes' Corton Grand Cru



£285 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

17.5 Jancis Robinson

"Fleshy, ripe, sweetly spiced and wonderfully fruit-forward too. Expressive violet aromas on the nose with crunchy acid and a succulent, silky tannic texture. Justifies grand cru."

17.5 Pts, Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier

"Georges Lignier's nephew Benoît Stehly has been involved in the domaine since 2002 and took over sole responsibility in 2008, since which time the wines have become finer and finer."

Jancis Robinson

Among one of the most humble and charming people you would want to meet, Benoît Stehly is producing some delightful wines at this Domaine in Morey. Benoît has been working there since 1998 and has taken on the day to day management in the last decade.

This estate is on a run of top form over recent vintages, producing quite a spread of elegant wines across the range of classifications. It's notable that Jancis Robinson in particular is starting to appreciate the appeal of these wines as her 2016 feature on Domaine George Lignier testifies – "I'd like to draw your attention to a domaine that seems to be getting better and better."

I had a slight pang of angst before tasting the 2017s here, as the trademark light yet flavour-packed house style could easily have been in danger of being diluted had yields not been kept down. I should have known though that Benoît would deliver the goods and that he did in spades, with the village and Grand Cru wines in particular absolutely singing. Once again then, the 2017s come highly recommended.



Domaine Georges Lignier Morey-Saint-Denis



£260 per 12 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"More peppery and rustic than the southern part of the village that are more Chambolle-like. Later malos than usual so a bit of CO2 still. Lightly peppery red fruit and that same stemmy freshness. More savoury and spiced on the palate, firm but rounded. Deft and satisfying, a complete wine."

16 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Gevrey-Chambertin



£320 per 12 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

16 Jancis Robinson

"Lightish crimson. A touch smoky but lots of tart cherry on the palate. Very fresh, chirpy, full of energy. Tangy, juicy and nicely stemmy on the long finish. Very fresh and well structured by the stems."

16 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru



£175 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Light cherry red. Perfumed with sweet red-cherry fruit. On the palate a touch of oak spice, the tannins supple and friendly around a good fruit core. Generous and rounded and an attractive, chewy food-friendly finish."

16.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Chambolle-Musigny



£370 per 12 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

16 Jancis Robinson

"Lightish crimson. Very sweet red-fruited nose. A slight smoky reduction. Red fruited and tangy on the palate but with lots of acidity to balance and give a mouth-watering finish. Chewy and with a straightforward honest pleasure and good persistence. Sweeter and less stemmy than the Morey."

16 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier 'Clos des Ormes' Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

"Light cherry red. A dusty red-fruit fragrance. Tangy wild cherries, really wild. Tight and mineral on the palate, sinewy and incredibly long, athletic. Great tension and very fine tannic texture and freshness. A slightly ascetic style and delicious with it."

17 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier 'Les Combottes' Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru



£330 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

16 Jancis Robinson

"Deeper colour than Clos des Ormes (probably clonal). Riper and darker fruited even though it was harvested early. More black-cherry sweetness. A little flatter but has power underneath, doesn't have the energy of his other wines. The ripeness has given smooth tannins and quite a gentle wine."

16 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Clos-Saint-Denis Grand Cru



£485 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

17.5 Jancis Robinson

"Mid crimson. Dark fruited and spicy, balanced by a lifted stemmy freshness. Chewy but fine-boned tannins, really dry and has elegance in a whole-bunch style. Aromatic and with a dry chalky texture on the mid palate that increases the freshness. Has both delicacy in the texture and power in the length. Difficult to describe. Winemaker Benoît Stehly finds blood orange in this wine and I agree when he suggests it. Lovely subtle aromas."

17.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Clos de la Roche Grand Cru



£595 per 6 IB Drink to 2033+ Arriving Late 2019

17+ Jancis Robinson

"Lightish cherry red. An aroma that is restrained but draws you in. Dark-red fruit, peppery, mineral and a little chalky. On the palate, really sinewy and almost but not quite lean, direct and precise and very fresh. The opposite of gourmand but satisfying in a health-promoting way. No fat. Much more in finesse than charm. Very long."

17+ Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Georges Lignier Charmes-Chambertin Grand Cru



£620 per 6 IB Drink to 2033 Arriving Late 2019

"Regrettably not a wine we tasted during our visit in October which is a shame given what would be an interesting contrast between the more delicate, elegant style of Georges Lignier, with the more typically powerful, darker fruit laden wines you may expect from Charmes-Chambertin."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Georges Lignier Bonnes Mares Grand Cru



£720 per 6 IB Drink to 2035+ Arriving Late 2019

17.5 Jancis Robinson

"Light cherry red. Much sweeter and more red fruited than the Clos de la Roche with a touch of oak spice. Smells more *gourmand*, richer, fuller in the mouth and rounded with a very nice freshness at the core. Lovely balance between the generous fruit and the precise vibrant acidity. Very long. Finely textured, compact tannins clothed in bright fruit." 17.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Joseph Drouhin

"...it is clear that there is much to enjoy courtesy of Drouhin this year, and not only amongst their bevy of Premier and Grand Crus. Their whites are particularly strong and I would single out the Chassagne-Montrachet Embazées,"

Neal Martin

Maison Drouhin was established in 1880 by Joseph Drouhin and has remained a family affair ever since, being run nowadays by the fourth generation. Frédéric is assuming overall control of the firm from his father Robert while his brother Philippe and sister Véronique, who both studied at Dijon now look after the vineyards and winemaking respectively. The estate itself occupies the breathtaking Parliament building, one of the most beautiful cellars in all of Beaune, originating from when Burgundy was an independent duchy.

Nearly all of Domaine Drouhin is fully organic and biodynamic, with that very same philosophy being extended to newly acquired vineyards. Benefitting from the use of optical sorting tables from 2013 onwards, these wines are often darker, denser and more concentrated than many.



Joseph Drouhin Volnay



£325 per 12 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Joseph Drouhin Pommard



£365 per 12 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Joseph Drouhin Gevrey-Chambertin



£395 per 12 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Neal Martin

16.5+ Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Village offers good concentration on the nose, delivering plenty of red plum, raspberry and a touch of damson that bursts through with aeration. The palate is medium-bodied with fine-grained tannin, very fine acidity, silky-smooth texture and gentle grip on the rounded, wild-strawberry-infused finish. Delightful." 89-91 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Les-Saint-Georges' Nuits-Saint-Georges 1er Cru



£325 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Spring 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Joseph Drouhin 'Clos des Chênes' Volnay 1er Cru



£360 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Joseph Drouhin Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru



£375 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

89-91 Neal Martin

"Cask sample. Mid to deep cherry red. Peppery and lightly stemmy in its fresh dark-red-fruit aroma. Delicate tannins, such finesse and harmony already. Refined and long. Supple but all in proportion. Moreish, full of fruit but delicate at the same time."

17 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Clos des Mouches' Beaune 1^{er} Cru



£375 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

17.5+ Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Beaune Clos des Rouches Rouge 1er Cru, picked September 4–7, contains a little more whole cluster fruit this year – around 30%, according to Véronique Drouhin. Sensual, ripe red cherry, cranberry and subtle bergamot tea aromas gently unfold in the glass. The palate is well balanced with supple tannin, good substance, veins of white pepper and even a very slight flintiness toward a finish that lingers in the mouth. This shows very good potential, although it will benefit from three or four years in bottle."

92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin Vosne-Romanée 1^{er} Cru



£395 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

17 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru comes from three lieux-dits: Les Charmes, Les Petits-Monts and Aux Malconsorts. It has a very composed bouquet of ample ripe raspberry, crushed strawberry, veins of blue fruit and a touch of crushed stone. The palate is well balanced with supple tannin and a fine bead of acidity. A light oyster shell note pokes up toward the harmonious, velvety finish. This is going to be very seductive." 91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin Clos de la Roche Grand Cru



£395 per 3 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted this year – critics not to be confirmed.

Joseph Drouhin Clos Vougeot Grand Cru



£875 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

17 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Clos de Vougeot Grand Cru was picked between September 8 and 11 from a parcel in the middle of the clos and includes 30% whole clusters. Véronique Drouhin said that because it was a warm season, the blend includes a parcel from the lower part of the Grand Cru that they usually sell off. This has quite a sumptuous bouquet of copious red cherries, kirsch and subtle blueberry aromas, becoming more and more floral in the glass. The lightly spiced palate is medium-bodied on the entry, offering gentle grip, although I feel it does not quite deliver the precision on the finish compared directly with the superlative Clos-de-Bèze."

90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin Côte de Beaune



£295 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Spring 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Joseph Drouhin Chassagne-Montrachet



£395 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Spring 2019

90 Neal Martin

88-90 Stephen Tanzer

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Chassagne-Montrachet Village is initially closed on the nose but develops nicely in the glass, displaying impressive mineralité and terroir expression for a Village Cru. The cohesive palate is well balanced, with a fine line of acidity and a brisk, saline, marine-influenced finish that is top-drawer. Try to grab a couple of cases of this." 90 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin Puligny-Montrachet



£430 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Spring 2019

91 Neal Martin

88-90 Stephen Tanzer

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Puligny-Montrachet Village is a little fuller on the nose than the Meursault Village, featuring attractive aromas of hazelnut and orange pith – actually quite Meursault-like in style. The palate is well balanced with impressive concentration, especially for a Village Cru, and crammed full of green apples and pears. A light saline note emerges toward the satisfying finish. Excellent."

91 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Embazées' Chassagne-Montrachet 1er Cru



£330 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Spring 2019

92 Neal Martin

91-93 Stephen Tanzer

16.5+ Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Chassagne-Montrachet Embazées 1er Cru was bottled in August 2018. It has an appealing bouquet that needs a little coaxing from the glass, but eventually it offers hazelnut and hints of almond, and a touch of lemon peel emerges with time. The palate is well balanced, with a fine bead of acidity, a little fatness in the mouth and a saline finish that might deceive you into thinking more Puligny. Very fine."

92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Morgeot Marquis de Laguiche' Chassagne-Montrachet 1er Cru



£360 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Spring 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

90-93 Stephen Tanzer

17.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Chassagne-Montrachet Morgeot 1er Cru (Marquis de Laguiche) has a wonderful, vivacious bouquet of citrus fruit infused with yellow flowers and grilled walnut, actually quite Meursault-like in style. The palate is well balanced with a fine bead of acidity, touches of walnut and lemon peel, well-integrated oak and real precision and mineralité toward the finish. Excellent."

91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Clos de la Garenne' Puligny-Montrachet 1^{er} Cru



£365 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Spring 2019

91 Neal Martin

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Puligny-Montrachet Clos de la Garenne 1er Cru, which was taken from cask, has a delightful array of scents: orange blossom, hints of apricot and crushed stone, turning quite floral with continued aeration. The palate is very well balanced, displaying walnut and smoke on the entry, and quite flinty in style, maybe just lacking the complexity of the Meursault Charmes toward the finish."

91 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Joseph Drouhin 'Clos des Mouches' Beaune 1er Cru



£480 per 6 IB Drink to 2028+ Arriving Spring 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

91-93 Stephen Tanzer

18.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Beaune Clos des Mouches Blanc 1er Cru was picked September 1–6 in six different passes through the vineyard. It has quite a strict, conservative bouquet of vibrant citrus fruit infused with touches of linden and orange pith. The palate is quite assertive on the entry, conveying good weight. Like many white 2017s, it is lightly spiced, though this cuvée shows more marine influences and a tang of marmalade toward the persistent, intense finish. Very fine."

91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com January 2019

Domaine Henri Gouges

"A producer that I greatly admire" Neal Martin

Domaine Gouges is one of Nuits-Saint-Georges's most famous Domaines and one of the appellation's best — "the doyen of Nuits-Saint-Georges with magnificent wines" says Clive Coates MW. The Gouges family have been owners of this Domaine since 1919 and founder Henri is something of a Burgundian revolutionary. He was a key player in the battle against fraud and was the first Burgundian to bottle his own wine because it guarantees provenance and therefore quality. Domaine bottling is now practised throughout Burgundy. Grandson Gregory runs the Domaine with the same drive and passion for quality as his legendary grandfather.

The Domaine's wines were renowned under Henri as some of the most structured and long-lived of Nuits-Saint-Georges' wines. However, Gregory has been working towards a more approachable style. That said, these are still wines very much built for ageing.



Domaine Henri Gouges Bourgogne



£100 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

84-86 Neal Martin

86-88 Burghound

"The 2017 Bourgogne Pinot Noir has a quite primal, slightly confit-like bouquet of macerated red cherries and strawberry fruit. The well-balanced palate offers fleshy red cherries mixed with orange peel and a light, fleshy finish. One to drink early. This was due to be bottled around January 2018." 84-86 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Gouges Nuits-St-Georges



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

86-88 Neal Martin

88-90 Burghound

"The 2017 Nuits Saint-Georges Village comes from eight different blocks instead of the usual nine, as the Les Crots has been bottled separately. It has a simple but effective bouquet of red cherries and cranberry jus aromas. The candied palate is well balanced, offering sappy red fruit, gentle grip and a lightly spiced finish. Fine."

86-88 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Gouges 'Clos des Porrets St Georges' Nuits-St-Georges 1^{er} Cru



£250 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

90-92 Burghound

16.5+ Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Nuits Saint-Georges Clos des Porrets-Saint Georges 1er Cru has an attractive bouquet of black cherries, bilberry jam, a touch of blue fruit and just a hint of licorice. The palate is medium-bodied with sappy black fruit. There is an initial burst and then everything clamps back down so that the second half is structured and grippy. Lacks a little charm at the moment, but give this time in bottle."

90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Gouges 'Les Vaucrains' Nuits-St-Georges 1er Cru



£425 per 6 IB Drink to 2035+ Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

91-93 Burghound

17 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Nuits Saint-Georges Les Vaucrains 1er Cru has a lovely, intense bouquet that combines blue and black fruit, crushed violet petals and incense. The palate is medium-bodied with supple tannin, showing a little more cohesion than the Les Pruliers, if not quite the same mineral drive as Domaine Chevillon's. Still, there is decent length and depth to this Les Vaucrains, though it will need several years in bottle." 91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Gouges 'Pinot Blanc' Bourgogne



£100 per 6 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

84 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Bourgogne Blanc offers simple fresh pear and light lychee scents on the nose. The palate is well balanced, featuring light grapefruit and pear flavors and moderate acidity, but it feels a little faded right on the finish. Drink over the next two or three years."

84 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Jean Grivot

"The reputation of Grivot's wines have grown, placing them perhaps just outside the top tier of Domaine de la Romanée-Conti or Leroy." Neal Martin

One of the Côte d'Or's greatest and longest-established Domaines, Grivot is now predominantly in the hands of Mathilde, who in the last few years has been gradually taking over from her father Etienne.

The house style remains the same, with late harvesting and extended periods of barrel ageing resulting in a muscular, structured style that can be difficult to taste when young, but which after a few years in the cellar open up to reveal beautiful black-fruit driven wines. The quality of the Domaine's holdings helps in no small part, however the Grivot magic is evident across the range, even on the Gamay-based Coteaux Bourguignons.



Domaine Jean Grivot Coteaux Bourguignons



£180 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

87-89 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Côteaux Bourguignon is pure Gamay grown in Vosne-Romanée (in fact, Etienne told me his grandfather used to grow Gamay in the same parcel). It has an attractive and surprisingly Pinot Noir–like bouquet. The palate is medium-bodied with fleshy ripe fruit, mulberry and Dorset plum to the fore and a corpulent finish. Lovely!" 87-89 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Jean Grivot Clos de Vougeot Grand Cru



£960 per 6 IB Drink to 2040 Arriving Late 2019

18.5 Jancis Robinson

92-94 Neal Martin

92-94 Burghound

"Lightish crimson. Red fruits, roses and a light hint of vanilla. One of those wines you want to go on smelling for ever. Tighter on the palate but still succulent. Tannic finesse. Great combination of subtlety and persistence. Red fruits and almost something close to citrus."

18.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Jouan

"The style is supple, fragrant and fruit-driven, the wines invariably succulent and satiny, drinking well young and old. Quite why Jouan remains so little known is hard to say—perhaps because there is so little wine?—but readers would do well to seek out this high-quality source, which has rendered an excellent set of 2017s."

William Kelley, RobertParker.com

Wonderfully stubborn in his winemaking approach, Philippe (Henri's son) has a method and he sticks by it – gentle extractions, no green harvesting, the fruit always 100% destemmed and all of his new oak sourced from a single cooper, François Frères. The resultant wines are frankly rather delicious; fruit- rather than tannin-driven, with the word 'succulent' coming up several times in our notes. The only fly in the ointment? Availability, as alluded to by Bill Nanson in his assessment of the Domaine – "understated but with an excellent baseline of quality – I just need to work out how I will now buy some wine!" Production here is a mere three hectares.



Domaine Henri Jouan Morey-St-Denis



£210 per 6 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

87-89 Robert Parker

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Aromas of cherries, cassis, candied peel and plums introduce the 2017 Morey-Saint-Denis Village, a medium-bodied, sapid and satiny wine with a juicy core of fruit, melting tannins and a lingering finish. This cuvée derives from the lieux-dits Crais Gillon, Corvées, and Le Village."

87-89 Pts William Kelley, RobertParker.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Jouan 'Clos Sorbé' Morey-St-Denis 1er Cru



£395 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

92-94 Robert Parker

17+ Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Morey-Saint-Denis 1er Cru Clos Sorbé unfurls in the glass with a complex bouquet of cherries, raspberries, raw cocoa, candied peel and cinnamon. On the palate, it's medium to full-bodied, velvety and supple, with melting tannins, a succulent core of fruit and a long, sapid finish. From 80-year-old vines in what is arguably Morey's finest premier cru, this wine is one of the Côte de Nuits' best-kept secrets."

92-94 Pts William Kelley, RobertParker.com, January 2019

Domaine Henri Jouan Clos-Saint-Denis Grand Cru



£760 per 6 IB Drink to 2035 Arriving Late 2019

92-94+ Robert Parker

17++ Jancis Robinson

"The king of the cellar, the 2017 Clos Saint-Denis Grand Cru wafts from the glass with expressive aromas of wild berries, dried rose petal, grilled game bird, rich soil and blood orange. On the palate, it's full-bodied, ample and broad, with a deep core of succulent fruit that cloaks its elegantly satiny and supple structuring tannins, concluding with a long, fragrant finish. This is a lovely Clos Saint-Denis that will be well worth seeking out in bottle."

92-94+ Pts William Kelley, RobertParker.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini

"This is a fine address if you are seeking an alternative to, say, Armand Rousseau. Heresztyn-Mazzini is in the same mould as their neighbour, Pierre Duroché: very hands-off winemaking, letting the vineyard speak; mineral-driven and elegant wines... Yes, I know the name is a bit of a tongue-twister, but trust me, the wines are worth seeking out."

Neal Martin

Based right in the heart of Gevrey-Chambertin, 2017 is the third vintage we have offered from this Domaine and it may well be the best. Run by Florence and her husband Simon, in the vineyard the operation is run organically, with full biodynamic certification due to follow imminently. This of course necessitates a painstaking level of attention to detail in the vineyards, something that is also in evidence in the winery, with every decision, for example about the percentage of whole clusters to use, being pored over and each cuvée being treated separately according to its own needs. The wines are an absolute pleasure to drink, with the silky texture of the tannins and the purity of the fruit noteworthy.



Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini Vieilles Vignes Gevrey-Chambertin



£225 per 6 IB Drink to 2035+ Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Neal Martin

16.5+ Jancis Robinson

88-90 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Vieilles Vignes comes from vines over 60-years old and it matures in 25% new oak and 50% whole bunches. This has a very expressive bouquet with blackberry, briary and light loamy aromas. The palate is medium-bodied with white pepper sprinkled over the dark berry fruit, hints of Earl Grey towards the nicely composed finish. Excellent."

89-91 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Clos Village' Gevrey-Chambertin



£245 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

86-88 Neal Martin

87-89 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Clos Village comes from vines outside the winery, including 50% whole bunches and 25% new oak from Chassin. It has a well defined, slightly stemmy bouquet but with sufficient fruit supporting it. The palate is medium-bodied with a peppery opening, very spicy in the mouth, moderate depth but, it just needs a little more grip and density on the finish. Drink over three or four years." 86-88 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Songes' Gevrey-Chambertin



£245 per 6 IB Drink to 2035 Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Neal Martin

16.5 Jancis Robinson

89-91 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin "Les Songes" Vieilles Vignes comes from 80-year old vines in two areas in the north of the appellation, blended with 70% whole bunches and raised in 25% new oak. This has a very lively and intense bouquet that actually puts the "Les Jouises" in the shade - vibrant red fruit intermingling with minerals. The palate is medium-bodied with fine grain tannin, well balanced with black fruit mixed with tobacco and graphite, with a sustained finish. Excellent."

91-93 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Perrières' Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru



£345 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

17.5+ Jancis Robinson

89-92 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin La Perrière 1er Cru matures in 30% new oak and with 50% whole bunches (the domaine feels that more than this percentage is excessive.) The bouquet is medium-bodied with ripe tannin, plenty of red berry fruit mixed with hints of pain d'épices and touches of cassis. This is quite open on the finish but one feels it deserves two or three years before reaching for the corkscrew. Fine."

90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Goulots' Gevrey-Chambertin 1er Cru



£345 per 6 IB Drink to 2035 Arriving Late 2019

92-94 Neal Martin

17 Jancis Robinson

89-92 Burghound

"The 2017 Gevrey-Chambertin Les Goulots 1er Cru comes from a cold micro-climate and therefore is always the last to be picked, matures in 30% new oak with 55% whole bunches. It has a very well defined bouquet, very harmonious with red cherries, cranberry and crushed stone aromas. The palate is medium-bodied with supple tannin, a fine bead of acidity, quite taut and linear with a lightly peppery finish. Superb." 92-94 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Heresztyn-Mazzini 'Les Millandes' Morey-St-Denis 1er Cru



£345 per 6 IB Drink to 2035 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

17.5 Jancis Robinson

90-93 Burghound

"The 2017 Morey-Saint-Denis Les Millandes 1er Cru matures in 30% new oak with 70% whole bunch fruit from the 70-year old vines, which is the source for the domaine's massal selection. This tends to be picked earlier than the other vineyard in order to obtain freshness. The bouquet is very refined and quite intense with black cherries, boysenberry and hints of liquorice lending an exotic note to the aromas. The palate is medium-bodied with supple tannin, a little foursquare in style (reminding me of a "mini-Latricières!"), but with fine grip on the finish. It will require three or four years in barrel."

90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Hudelot-Baillet

"Gotta soft spot for Hudelot-Baillet...I don't mind admitting that. It's just got everything that I like about Burgundy: not too big, congenial winemaker, choice selection of premier crus with a grand cru if you fancy, straightforward winemaking, nothing fancy, nothing self-aggrandising. Just delicious, nuanced wines that need but a sip to compel a purchase" Neal Martin

A Domaine often thought of for producing big, powerful Chambolle-Musigny has, based on our more recent tastings of their wares, produced a selection of wines we feel are perhaps more typical of the appellation; really very charming, precise and elegant. Dominique Leguen looks after the Domaine, taking over from Joel Hudelot-Baillet in 1998. It seems there is a general consensus that the estate has been on the rise since with bottling done at the Domaine and no nonsense winemaking techniques to carefully manage the extraction of tannins from the skins and minimising the influence from the pips allowing for softer, finer tannins.

One amusing episode from our tasting was that after Dominique had scurried from unmarked barrel to unmarked barrel to fetch tasting samples for us, moving up from the humble Bourgogne through to his Bonnes Mares, he realised he had missed out his Chambolle-Musigny. Mindful that trying a humble village wine straight after a wine many multiples more expensive than it could only result in disappointment, we braced ourselves. We were, however, met by a confident wine packed full of upfront fruit that didn't seem overshadowed at all.



Domaine Hudelot-Baillet Bourgogne



£155 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

88 Neal Martin

"The 2017 Bourgogne Pinot Noir, matured in 20% new oak, has a slightly lactic element on the nose. There is plenty of dark berry fruit here, plus a subtle chalky element. The linear, focused palate is well balanced, displaying a fine bead of acidity and a precise finish. Certainly, this is one of the better regional reds I have tasted in this vintage." 88 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Hudelot-Baillet Chambolle-Musigny



£425 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

"Disaster! After Dominique Leguen had scurried from unmarked barrel to unmarked barrel to fetch tasting samples for us, moving up from the humble Bourgogne through to his Bonnes Mares Grand Cru, he realised he had missed out his Chambolle-Musigny. Mindful that trying a humble village wine straight after a wine many multiples more expensive than it could only result in disappointment, we braced ourselves. We were, however, met by a confident wine packed full of upfront fruit that didn't seem overshadowed at all. This will drink younger than the Bonnes Mares of course, and a mere year or two of ageing in bottle should make it a delicious, elegant take on the estate's home village of Chambolle." Stewart Pryce, Fine Wine Team

Domaine Hudelot-Baillet 'Charmes' Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru



£315 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

92-94 Neal Martin

90-92 Burghound

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Chambolle-Musigny Les Charmes 1er Cru, matured in 30% new oak, has quite a deep color. The bouquet is a little introverted at first, scents of black cherries, blueberry and pressed violets gradually unfolding in the glass. The palate is very well balanced and quite intense, offering mineral-rich black cherry and blueberry fruit, then easing down the gears toward the elegant finish. Superb."

92-94 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Jean Chauvenet

Domaine Jean Chauvenet are Nuits-St-Georges specialists. Not only do they specialise in this particular village, but more specifically they focus on wines of real approachability and friendliness. Red fruits predominate and while the long-term ageing potential is certainly less than at the likes of Gouges, that is no bad thing for those looking to drink and enjoy their Nuits in the first three or four years of its life, especially given the quality on offer for the price.

The 2017 vintage really suits this Domaine's style, with the growing season's natural softness playing well against the naturally big style of the wines. The extraction levels seem high, but have not gone too far, so the resultant wines are assertive, have big tannins and are packed full of flavour.



Domaine Jean Chauvenet Nuits-St-Georges



£295 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Burghound

"(from the northern portion of Nuits, specifically Aux Allots and Aux St. Jacques). A classic Nuits nose proffers notes of forest floor, warm earth, plum and the *sauvage*, all of which is trimmed in gentle oak nuances. There is more volume and richness if less refinement to the medium bodied flavors that are at once serious and rustic on the beautifully complex and persistent finish. The supporting structure is more prominent and this will require patience." 89-91 Pts, Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Jean Chauvenet 'Les Damodes' Nuits-St-Georges 1er Cru



£260 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Burghound

"(from a .28 ha parcel). Generous wood fights a bit with the markedly spicy array of cassis, dark cherry and a wide array of spice and floral elements. The rich yet notably more refined middle weight flavors exude a fine bead of minerality onto the linear and almost delicate finish. This is at present pretty woody but the mid-palate appears to have sufficient stuffing such that the oak will eventually be successfully integrated."

90-92 Pts, Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Jean Monnier

"This is an estate whose wines I recommend with much enthusiasm." Robert Parker

A producer who leaves us scratching our heads more so than any other. This for a number of reasons. First of all, the quality of the wines are superb, it's absolutely crazy how inexpensive they are given the quality, but the owner is so down to earth and is perhaps very fortunate with the plots he has. He seems to have no desire to charge more than he does. How more merchants have not jumped on this producer is beyond us, maybe they just don't know this tucked away Meursault Domaine? Monnier is a style which complements our range very well at prices that are hard to argue with. This seventh generation family Domaine own 100% of the fruit they use and it is all hand harvested. The wines are lovely and they really are very difficult to beat when it comes to value for money. Stylistically they very much appeal to us given they are more refreshing, with higher acidity. A perfect partner for food, although given the style we think would be lovely to enjoy on a warm summer day.

2017 sees us add a pair of Premiers Crus to the range – the white Beaune 'Montrevenot' and red Pommard "Grands Epenots-Clos de Cîteaux'



Domaine Jean Monnier 'Grands Epenots-Clos de Cîteaux' Pommard 1er Cru



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

"Just as Genevrières represents the top of the tree qualitatively for Domaine Monnier on the whites, the Grands Epenots does for the reds In fact, this vineyard is currently under consideration for promotion to Grand Cru. A heavy clay-limestone soil lends the wine a weight and heft that would see it age very well, but this is a Domaine that excels at producing wonderfully drinkable wines and it is in fact the silky side of this site's nature that is the most evident on tasting. A very nicely done Premier Cru."

Stewart Pryce, Fine Wine

Domaine Jean Monnier 'Montrevenot' Beaune 1er Cru



£90 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"What a super wine this is and such a good price. It ought to be no surprise that Monnier's producing wines which punch above their price point, but a 1er Cru Beaune at under £100 a 6 pack is something to appreciate. This has the perfect balance of the 2017 ripeness, but with the balancing acidity that comes of relatively early harvesting this year. Full of stone fruit with added layers of complexity from some moderate use of new oak, this is a smashing buy" Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Jean Monnier 'Vieilles Vignes' Meursault



£270 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"If there is one wine that best typifies Jean Monnier's wines, it has to be the old vine cuvée from the estate's home patch. This straddles the boundary between the lean, precise style of Meursault and the richer, broader one and does so brilliantly. Effortlessly drinkable, yet with a classic structure and hidden depths, this is the benchmark Meursault in our range."

Stewart Pryce, Fine Wine

Domaine Jean Monnier Puligny-Montrachet



£285 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"Fresh fruit dominates the attack, majoring on primary flavours of both citrus and stone fruit. The palate is rounded, in fact, it is pretty much exactly what you might envisage a Puligny made by a Meursault producer to be! That is no bad thing of course, with the Puligny's minerality nicely set in the context of a broad textural richness."

Stewart Pryce, Fine Wine

Domaine Jean Monnier 'Genevrières' Meursault 1^{er} Cru



£200 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

"Along with 'Perrières', I think 'Genevrières' constitutes the best vineyard sites in Meursault and being side by side perhaps no great surprise that they're pretty similar in style. Certainly no lack of concentration here, but balanced by ginger, spice and a perfectly balancing backbone of acidity. Another remarkable price for one of the finest 1er Cru sites in Meursault. Many village-level Meursault are pricier than this."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Jérôme Chézeaux

"Beautiful, classically built wines" Antonio Galloni

Nuits-St-Georges and particularly Vosne-Romanée is in great demand and finding good quality sources is not easy given the global clamour for these wines. To come across an under the radar family estate, like Domaine Chézeaux, turning out classic, minimal-intervention reds was a real boon and we quickly snapped up their wines. Charming and expressive of their terroir, these wines will not disappoint Burgundy fans.

Any time these wines can be afforded in bottle will be to the benefit of the drinker, however true to the nature of the 2017 vintage, there is plenty of early drinking pleasure to be had.



Domaine Jérôme Chézeaux 'Aux Boudots' Nuits-St-Georges 1er Cru



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

"From a site right up in the North of Nuits-St-Georges and made from a Vosne specialist it ought to be no great surprise that this is a more fragrant, perfumed wine compared to what you may expect from a vineyard further south where they tend to be a little more rustic and tannic. This particular vineyard site is adjacent to the great 'Les Malconsorts', so really is a prime position. A lovely, polished example of Nuits-St-Georges"

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Jérôme Chézeaux 'Les Chaumes' Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru



£210 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

"Interestingly this cuvée is just underneath, down the hill from 'Les Malconsorts', though amusingly this is far more akin to a Nuits-St-Georges perhaps than the Nuits above! More structured, longer-lived and tannic than the Boudot above. A wine for keeping as opposed to something that can be enjoyed in it's youth."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Jérôme Chézeaux 'Les Suchots' Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru



£285 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

"A premier cru site which many feel ought to be upgraded to Grand Cru, in fact I recall travelling in Burgundy with the late John Avery who always remarked that this was his favourite vineyard site in Burgundy. This is truly exotic, typical of the site, with super-concentrated dark fruit, spice and fine tannins."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Joseph Colin

"Brilliant debut vintage from new Burgundy Domaine Joseph Colin in Saint-Aubin, Chassagne and Puligny...
Wines of great personality, substance, intensity and verve."

Joanna Simon

"Get in at the ground floor." It's a good idea in theory, but how often does one get the opportunity to establish an allocation of the first vintage from a serious Côte d'Or Domaine to be released en primeur? Well, here we do have such an opportunity.

There are several branches of the Colin family making wine in and around Chassagne and this Domaine has been formed with Joseph splitting his holdings from those of his brother Pierre-Yves Colin-Morey.

Chassagne is of course a speciality, but further excitement is brought to the range with Premier Crus and a village St Aubin, plus a pair of Grands Crus.



Domaine Joseph Colin Chassagne-Montrachet Rouge



£145 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

16 Jancis Robinson

"Pale and lively. Sweet fruit start and really rather charming. Nicely polished. Perceptible drive. GV" 16 Jancis Robinson, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Joseph Colin Bourgogne Blanc



£100 per 6 IB Drink to 2021 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Joseph Colin 'Compendium' St-Aubin



£130 per 6 IB Drink to 2024 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Joseph Colin Chassagne-Montrachet



£195 per 6 IB Drink to 2024 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Joseph Colin 'En Remilly' St-Aubin 1^{er} Cru



£185 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Pure nose is the most inspiring of these Joseph Colin St-Aubins. Very cool and fresh and impressive. A terroir wine that doesn't seem to be trying too hard. Nicely balanced and notably long. Impressive!" 16.5 Jancis Robinson, JancisRobinson.com, jJanuary 2019

Domaine Joseph Colin 'La Chatenière' St-Aubin 1^{er} Cru



£185 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

16+ Jancis Robinson

"Some softness and charm but with a tight finish. Lots of intensity." 16+ Jancis Robinson, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Joseph Colin 'Vide Bourse' Chassagne-Montrachet 1er Cru



£280 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Matrot

"Domain Matrot expresses the quintessence of terroir. Its wines are sometimes closed when young, but their ageing potential is immense."

La Revue du Vin de France

Domaine Matrot was established in 1909 by Joseph Matrot and had been run solely by his understated but talented grandson Thierry since 1976, with 2015 his last vintage before handing over the reigns to his daughters Elsa and Adèle. They are now renowned as "a top-class Meursault producer" (Wine International) and own some of the best plots in Meursault's finest vineyards.

The sisters, like their father before them, believe in using oak only very sparingly. They are firm believers that quality comes from the vineyard, so let the fruit do the talking. The result is a portfolio of white Burgundies that are intensely flavoured, incredibly pure tasting and which have excellent ageing potential. With one exception, they do not use new oak for their Premiers Crus, instead using the new oak normally reserved for a Domaine's top labels in the entry level offerings in order to age the wood ready for the top wines.



Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière' Maranges 1^{er} Cru



£220 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

"An often-overlooked village to the south of Chassagne-Montrachet whose wines, like say Saint-Aubin or Fixin represent a smart buy when comparing the quality and price of better know villages. Although, not as yet reviewed by the likes of Burghound, this 1er Cru often receives praise for it's red-fruit dominant fruit character, finesse and floral aromatics. This year is no different, I do feel Maranges suits this vintage very well."

Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Matrot Bourgogne



£125 per 12 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

"Possibly the best vintage of this cuvée I've ever tasted from Matrot and that includes the wonderful 2010 and 2014s. I always think the key with Matrot's more affordable whites is the acidity levels, given they tend to be ripe, they need a cooler vintage to maintain the freshness. The 2017 does exactly that. A little touch of honey and stone fruit is offset perfectly by a whistle-clean finish. One of the highlights of the whites this year in my view" Gus McLean, Fine Wine Manager

Domaine Matrot Meursault



£350 per 12 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

86-88 Vinous

"(no new oak; half of these vines were picked "before the big rain" and half after, said Elsa Matrot): Pale yellow with a green tinge. A bit riper but less floral on the nose than the Saint-Romain, displaying smoky scents of yellow stone fruits. In a fatter style, offering hints of very ripe fruits as well as clove and smoke notes. With its slight finishing edge of acidity, this village wine still needs time to harmonize."

86-88 Pts, Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com, September 2018

42

Domaine Matrot 'Charmes' Meursault 1er Cru



£260 per 6 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Vinous

"(picked on August 29, the first day of the harvest here; no new oak was used for the Meursault premier crus): Pale bright yellow. Reticent nose dominated by yellow peach flesh, with subtle notes of herbs and flowers emerging with air. Ripe and supple but also with a firm spine of acidity to give precision to the middle palate. Not a fleshy wine but displays the most thrust and length to this point, with its persistent finish hinting at the volume of the vintage. The yield here was no higher than 50 hectoliters per hectare, according to Elsa Matrot. Very well done. Incidentally, Thierry Matrot expressed the opinion that "2017s picked before the rain can show real class," and this wine is a good example." 90-92 Pts, Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com, September 2018

Domaine Matrot 'Perrières' Meursault 1^{er} Cru



£325 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Vinous

"(picked on August 29, the same day as the Charmes and Combettes): Pale, light yellow. Tighter on the nose than the Combettes, with aromas of peach, underripe pineapple and white pepper energized by crushed rock. Concentrated, sappy wine, conveying a thickness of texture without any impression of weight. Shows the most urgent mineral energy of these 2017s--and not a bit overripe. This wine, along with the Combettes and Quintessence, will get a slightly longer élevage than the rest, and will be bottled sometime between November and January, according to Elsa Matrot." 91-93 Pts, Stephen Tanzer, Vinous.com, September 2018

Domaine Méo-Camuzet

"Domaine Méo-Camuzet boasts one of the most enviable portfolios in Vosne-Romanée" Neal Martin

As always, the Méo-Camuzet tasting was one of the highlights of the week. If you have not had the pleasure of encountering Méo-Camuzet before, they are one of the biggest names, not only in their home town of Vosne, but in all of Burgundy. Stylistically they produce very polished, but exotic, rich wines which take oak well. They are very ageworthy, yet show well in their relative youth. Individual vineyard expression is very strong, so it is worth reading the individual notes in detail. If one thing stood out in our tasting notes in this vintage, it is the word "concentration". While these are wines hardly known for lacking in flavour, it is perhaps at this address that 2017 comes closest to being called a "blockbuster". Serious wines, with serious ageing potential.



Méo-Camuzet Frère et Soeurs Fixin



£174 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

88-90 Burghound

"(from vines on the slope rather than the flatter plain, which generally give substantially better fruit). A deft application of wood frames an even fresher nose that offers up distinctly earthy dark currant aromas cut with a touch of the *sauvage*. There is a bit more minerality and verve if not quite the richness to the medium-bodied flavors that possess lovely delineation and sneaky good length. This isn't quite as seductive but there's more here."

88-90 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Méo-Camuzet Frère et Soeurs Morey-St-Denis



£240 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

88-91 Burghound

"(from Clos Solon). There is enough wood present on the pretty mix of red berries, lavender and soft earth scents to warrant pointing out. The rich, generous and very round middle weight flavors possess good volume and verve, all wrapped in a lightly structured and mildly toasty finish. This competent effort will need a few years for the wood to better integrate."

88-91 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Méo-Camuzet 'Clos St Philibert' Hautes-Côtes de Nuits Blanc



£144 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Pale, almost water-white and then very fresh and sleek. Lots of drive and quite enough ripe fruit. Very good for Hautes-Côtes."

16.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine René Bouvier

"They do represent good value and I appreciate the quality-driven ethic behind these wines."

Neal Martin

A new producer to our range in 2015 and having recently visited Bernard Bouvier to taste his 2017s, he's a producer we're sure is going to be one to follow.

The Domaine's based behind a Super U supermarket in Brochon, not the most glamourous location compared to many older Domaines, but it's credit to his wines that we came away from this visit thinking they were amongst the best we tried all week. Bernard's a tremendously charismatic winemaker and that comes across in his wines. They have great richness, but not at the expense of vineyard expression, tasting his range of Marsannays side by side it a perfect lesson for anyone who doubts the importance of terroir.



Domaine René Bouvier 'En Ouzeloy' Marsannay



£240 per 12 IB Drink to 2022+ Arriving Late 2019

87-89 Burghound

16+ Jancis Robinson

"Here the nose is similar but perhaps with slightly redder fruit while the middle weight flavors possess more evident minerality on the succulent, delicious and ever-so-mildly austere finale. There is slightly better energy which improves the overall sense of appeal."

87-89 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine René Bouvier 'Les Jeunes Rois' Gevrey-Chambertin



£395 per 12 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

86-89? Burghound

"A slightly stewed nose of poached plum is trimmed in just enough wood to notice. There is slightly better freshness on the palate of the succulent and velvet-textured medium weight flavors that offer reasonably good depth though the finish seems a bit flat. This is tough to read and even tougher to predict whether it will recover a better sense of balance." 86-89? Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine René Bouvier 'Les Fuées' Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru



£395 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

89-92 Burghound

"A perfumed and slightly cooler nose speaks of spiced plum, dark cherry and a whiff of tea. The perfumed character can also be found on the delicious medium-bodied flavors that display a taut muscularity before concluding in a complex, mineral-driven and youthfully austere finish. At least some patience required." 89-92 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine René Bouvier Charmes-Chambertin Grand Cru



£620 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

91-93 Burghound

"A distinctly cool nose features notes of forest floor, the sauvage and wide array of red berry fruit aromas. The mouthfeel of the intense, muscular and well-delineated flavors is, somewhat curious, notably sleeker than those of the Echézeaux before culminating in a moderately austere and slightly more complex and persistent finish. The supporting tannins are dense but fine and this should age effortlessly."

91-93 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019



£660 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

90-93 Burghound

"This is aromatically compositionally similar to the Fontenys but with markedly broader range of spice elements. I like the mouthfeel of the attractively textured and rich medium-bodied flavors that possess fine complexity on the solidly persistent, complex and punchy finish where the only nit is a hint of warmth. This caressing yet powerful effort should age well yet be approachable after only 5 to 7 years" 90-93 Allen Meadows, Burghound.com, January 2019

Domaine Servin

"Readers will be aware that I have a lot of appreciation for the wines of Domaine Servin. The domain has an array of propitious parcels scattered over the region and Marc Cameron is a thoughtful and talented winemaker."

Neal Martin

Documented by the monks of Saint Martin for owning vineyards as far back as the 16th century, successive generations of the Servin family have continued the tradition of winemaking in Chablis ever since.

Today the approach is very much a mixture of modern and traditional techniques. The best vineyard sites are hand harvested to ensure fruit arrives at optimum ripeness. Single plot vinification takes place in a mixture of stainless steel and oak, letting the differences in terroir shine in each wine. The vines average 40 years and most of the sites are on kimmeridgian limestone soils. This gives the wines their power, concentration and minerality which is so typical of the Domaine's style. The best examples have great cellaring potential.



Domaine Servin 'Montée de Tonnerre' Chablis 1^{er} Cru



£85 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

89-91 Neal Martin

91-94 Burghound

91-93 Robert Parker

"At this early stage, the 2017 Chablis 1er Cru Montée de Tonnerre would appear to be one of the highlights of the range, wafting from the glass with an attractive nose of lemon oil, lemon confit and honeysuckle. On the palate, it's medium to full-bodied, glossy and complete, with good tension and energy and with promising grip on the long finish." 91-93 William Kelley, RobertParker.com, August 2018

Domaine Servin 'Mont de Milieu' Chablis 1er Cru



£85 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

89-92 Burghound

87-89 Robert Parker

"The 2017 Chablis Mont de Milieu 1er Cru has a well defined green apple and white peach scented bouquet augmented with a touch of mint. The palate is well balanced with a fine bead of acidity, taut and linear but delivering fine depth and tension on the finish. This comes recommended."

90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Servin 'Vaucoupin' Chablis 1er Cru



£85 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

86-88 Neal Martin

90-93 Burghound

89-91 Robert Parker

"Tangy and tensile, the 2017 Chablis 1er Cru Vaucoupin offers up aromas of crisp green apple, oystershell and lemon oil. On the palate, it's medium-bodied, with racy acids and a stony, mineral finish. Despite it's evident energy it appears to be charming and structurally open-knit—but it's too soon to draw a definitive conclusion." 89-91 William Kelley, RobertParker.com, August 2018

Benjamin Leroux

"There are some exceptional wines here that rank alongside the illustrious names of Burgundy. He certainly has the gift of touch that seems to elevate everything from village crus to grand crus."

Neal Martin

Having started studying viticulture at the age of 13 and then started as the general manager of Domaine Comte Armand at just 26, it's fair to say Benjamin was a bit of a child prodigy, it's easy to forget how young he is now despite his wealth of experience garnered already. Now based in a winery in the heart of the town of Beaune, he has been acquiring new parcels of vineyard sites at quite a rate, but the quality is rising just as quickly as his vineyard holdings. Given the number of wines he now makes, it is remarkable how consistently excellent these wines are from top to bottom.



Domaine Benjamin Leroux Vosne-Romanée



£288 per 6 IB Drink to 2033 Arriving Late 2019

90-92 Neal Martin

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"The 2017 Vosne-Romanée Village, one of Leroux's largest cuvées at 31 barrels, a large proportion sourced from Flagey-Echézeaux, has a fragrant bouquet with white flowers complementing the red cherry and crushed strawberry fruit. The medium-bodied palate displays supple tannin, a fine bead of acidity, silky-smooth texture and a tart red cherry and orange peel finish that is quite spicy on the aftertaste. Good potential." 90-92 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019

Domaine Benjamin Leroux 'Sous le Chateau' St-Romain



£105 per 6 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Rich leesy aroma, just a touch mealy, lots of citrus but the texture is impressive here and gives the length." 16.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine Benjamin Leroux 'Baudines' Chassagne-Montrachet 1er Cru



£270 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

91-94 Vinous

"Inviting richness on the nose, light cedary spice but not oaky. Chewy, deep fruited but marked by freshness even in this sunny vintage. Tightly wound on the finish and a really food-friendly wine."

17 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Maison Roche de Bellene

"Nicolas Potel's wines have a strong following in the UK, the United States and Japan and for good reason. His wide portfolio of both domaine and négociant wines can be absolutely delicious."

Neal Martin

Our visits to Nicolas Potel's Maison Roche de Bellene are always memorable for several reasons, including being reminded of how much of a wine nut Nicolas is – his knowledge of the minutest of details of for example specific sub-plots within vineyards illustrates a real attention to detail that very much manifests itself in the winery too. One would hope from a good Burgundy négociant to get a large range of wines at a consistent and good level of quality and at a keen price – Roche de Bellene ticks these boxes and goes far beyond.



Maison Roche de Bellene Vieilles Vignes Bourgogne



£100 per 12 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

This is a charming red. Ripe and with its front foot forward, this is a very friend, crowd-pleasing Pinot Noir made predominantly from fruit surrounding the villages of Pommard and Volnay. Fragrent and silky, it is aged in extra-large barrels, which add roundness to the wine without dominating it with oak.

Maison Roche de Bellene Corton Grand Cru



£275 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

16.5 Jancis Robinson

"Blend of two bought-in wines. His grands crus generally have 25–40% new oak. In barrel. Extremely ripe cherry fruit. Juicy and rounded. A little stemmy perhaps and seems it might be ready earlier than you might expect for a grand cru. Light tannins and long juicy finish.."

16.5 Pts Julia Harding, JancisRobinson.com, December 2018

Maison Roche de Bellene Vieilles Vignes Chassagne-Montrachet



£350 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

Textbook Chassagne, with oats, lemon and a touch of creaminess from the oak predominant on the palate. There is plenty of flavour here and a good freshness to bring it all together.

Maison Roche de Bellene Vieilles Vignes Puligny-Montrachet



£420 per 12 IB Drink to 2023 Arriving Late 2019

The Puligny has lots of upfront fruit, true to the house style, but there is a real liveliness and freshness that makes it stand out from the crowd. Likely to please old time Burgundy fans and newcomers alike, it's pretty difficult not to enjoy this one! Good length too.



£295 per 6 IB Drink to 2025+ Arriving Late 2019

17 Jancis Robinson

"Saline and reductive, with a steely, matchstick note on the palate and precise, crunchy apple fruit. Has the classic nervy character of Puligny."

17 Pts Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaines Albert Bichot

"Albert Bichot is one of those Beaune-based producers that can really surprise. Maybe like me, you spent years dismissing the wines while drinking your La Tâche and the lo and behold, you are served a bottle of Bichot blind and marvel at how well it shows."

Neal Martin

Bichot's wines are characterised by their elegance and nuance – think of a ballerina to Domaine Confuron-Gindre's rugby player! The wines feel so unforced and effortless; the very essence of what Burgundy should be about. These are not wines to convert Shiraz drinkers to the joys of Pinot Noir, but they most certainly are wines to bring a smile to the face of many an existing Burgundy fan. Bichot split the labelling of their range based upon the original Domaine names, Domaine du Clos Frantin being their site based in Nuits-Saint-Georges and Domaine du Pavillon their Pommard estate.



Domaine du Clos Frantin Échezeaux Grand Cru



£735 per 6 IB Drink to 2030+ Arriving Late 2019

18+ Jancis Robinson

90-93 Burghound

"40% whole-bunch fermented. Aged in oak barrels (40% new) for 16 months. Cask sample. Dark, dense black fruit on the palate, very fine tannins that require no ageing to weather them. This is out-of-the-box-ready in structure and primary fruit purity, although the complexity will be years in the making."

18+ Pts Richard Hemming, JancisRobinson.com, January 2019

Domaine du Clos Frantin 'Les Malconsorts' Vosne-Romanée 1er Cru



£595 per 6 IB Drink to 2028 Arriving Late 2019

94 James Suckling 90-92 Neal Martin 16.5+ Jancis Robinson

91-93 Burghound

"A fragrant and complex Vosne-Romanée with deep black-cherry and floral notes on the nose. Then comes the rich and very elegant palate, the tannins almost completely masked by the fruit, until you reach the very powerful yet polished finish. Try in 2023."

94 Pts James Suckling, JamesSuckling.com, February 2019

Domaine Albert Bichot 'Les Chabiots' Chambolle-Musigny 1er Cru



£345 per 6 IB Drink to 2030 Arriving Late 2019

92-94 Neal Martin 92 James Suckling 17 Jancis Robinson

90-92 Burghound

"The 2017 Chambolle-Musigny Les Chabiots 1er Cru has a wonderful, expressive red cherry and crushed strawberry nose with beguiling floral aromas. The medium-bodied palate offers supple tannin, finely pitched acidity and a long, poised, silky-smooth finish. A great Chambolle from winemaker Alain Serveau." 92-94 Pts Neal Martin, Vinous.com, January 2019



£225 per 6 IB Drink to 2025 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Domaine Albert Bichot Santenay



£120 per 6 IB Drink to 2022 Arriving Late 2019

Not tasted in 2017

Burgundy 2017 Mixed Cases

Value Mixed Case

£170 per 12 IB

Arriving Late 2019

Contains one bottles each of:

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot, Bourgogne Domaine Camus-Bruchon, Bourgogne

Domaine Confuron-Gindre, Bourgogne

Domaine Faiveley 'La Framboisière'. Mercurey

Domaine Grivot, Coteaux Bourguignons

Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière', Maranges 1er Cru Benjamin Leroux 'Sous le Chateau' St-Romain

Domaine Jean Chartron 'Montmorin', Rully Domaine Felettig, Hautes-Côtes de Beaune

Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils 'Montrevenot', Beaune 1er Cru

Domaine Matrot, Bourgogne Domaine Servin 'Vaucoupin', Chablis 1er Cru

Value Red Case £170 per 12 IB Arriving Late 2019

Contains two bottles each of:

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot, Bourgogne Domaine Camus-Bruchon, Bourgogne Domaine Confuron-Gindre, Bourgogne Domaine Faiveley 'La Framboisière', Mercurey Domaine Grivot, Coteaux Bourguignons

Domaine Matrot 'La Fussière', Maranges 1er Cru

Value White Case £170 per 12 IB Arriving Late 2019 Contains two bottles each of:

Benjamin Leroux 'Sous le Chateau' St-Romain Domaine Jean Chartron 'Montmorin', Rully Domaine Felettig, Hautes-Côtes de Beaune

Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils 'Montrevenot', Beaune 1er Cru

Domaine Matrot, Bourgogne

Domaine Servin 'Vaucoupin', Chablis 1er Cru

Highlights Mixed Case £285 per 12 IB Contains one bottles each of: Arriving Late 2019

Domaine Buffet, Volnay

Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly', Savigny-Lès-Beaune Domaine de la Vougeraie 'La Justice', Gevrey-Chambertin Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot', Ladoix 1er Cru

Domaine Georges Lignier, Morey-Saint-Denis Domaine Jean Chauvenet, Nuits-Saint-Georges

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot, Chassagne-Montrachet Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches', Côte de Beaune

Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils, Puligny-Montrachet

Domaine Matrot, Meursault

Domaine Servin 'Mont de Milieu', Chablis 1er Cru

Joseph Drouhin, Côte de Beaune

Contains two bottles each of:

£285 per 12 IB **Highlights Red Case**

Domaine Buffet, Volnay

Domaine Camus-Bruchon 'Cuvée Reine Joly', Savigny-Lès-Beaune

Domaine de la Vougeraie 'La Justice', Gevrey-Chambertin

Domaine Gaston Ravaut 'Le Bois Roussot', Ladoix 1er Cru

Domaine Georges Lignier, Morey-Saint-Denis Domaine Jean Chauvenet, Nuits-Saint-Georges

Highlights White Case Contains two bottles each of:

Domaine Bachelet-Monnot, Chassagne-Montrachet Domaine de la Vougeraie 'Les Pierres Blanches', Côte de Beaune Domaine Jean Monnier et Fils, Puligny-Montrachet

Domaine Matrot, Meursault

Domaine Servin 'Mont de Milieu', Chablis 1er Cru

Joseph Drouhin, Côte de Beaune

£285 per 12 IB Arriving Late 2019

Arriving Late 2019

En Primeur Terms and Conditions

- Our En Primeur prices are the 'in bond' cost. The first instalment covers the cost of the wine itself, and when the wine is ready, you can decide whether to keep the wine in bond, or pay the Duty and VAT or other taxes or import tariffs (including but not limited to the imposition of any new or replacement duty or tariff by the WTO or any other competent authority domestic or international).
- No discount or vouchers shall apply to En Primeur wines.
- When we place your order we will send you a reservation certificate to the address provided by you. You will not receive any wine at this time. Although should you be a Premiere or Charter Plus member and order 12 or more bottles, we will send you your usual complimentary bottle(s).
- Wines ordered through our En Primeur service can only be cancelled within 14 days of placing the order. A full refund of any payment made up to this point will be given on receipt of written notification of the cancellation of the order. Due to the nature of the En Primeur sales we regret that orders cannot be cancelled after this time.
- When the wine arrives with us in the UK, we will send you the final invoice. This invoice will include the delivery cost to a UK address, duty (currently £2.23 per 0.75l bottle excl VAT), plus the VAT applicable on the day of the final invoice (currently 20%). Upon payment of the appropriate amount we will action your despatch instructions.
- If you do not contact us with instructions within 6 weeks of your wines being ready, we will place the wines into bonded storage on your behalf and at your cost. For further details please refer to our full Ts & Cs.
- All wines and spirits or other goods ordered remain the property of Laithwaite's Wine until appropriate payment is received in full.
- We can store your wine (both 'duty paid' or 'in bond') in ideal, long-term cellar conditions. Please contact us for further details.
- It is your responsibility to keep us informed of any changes of address in order to maintain any reservations you may have with us.
- All wines are insured by us at the original invoice value until your delivery and/or storage instructions have been completed.
- All goods are offered subject to availability. If the wines you have selected are unavailable we will contact you to advise you of this. If the producer fails to supply us with the wine we will contact you with available alternatives or offer a refund of monies paid.
- Force Majeure Direct Wines Ltd/Laithwaite's Wine will not be liable for failure to meet agreed obligations due to prevailing circumstances including but not limited to any act of God, war, strike, lock-out, industrial accident or other event beyond its reasonable control.
- All disputes arising out of this contract shall be subject to the jurisdiction of the Courts of England and Wales.
- For our full terms and conditions, including those relating to our 100% guarantee, non-delivery and cancellations, please go to www.laithwaites.co.uk/terms.

20.02.19